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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome everyone

          3  to today's hearing of the Public Safety Committee at

          4  which we will discuss two pieces of proposed

          5  legislation intended to address issues related,

          6  again, to our City's nightlife.

          7                 I'd like to thank everyone involved

          8  in these bills especially Speaker Quinn, the

          9  Administration for all their help and my Committee

         10  members who are here with me this morning.  Right

         11  now we have Council Member Vincent Gentile and

         12  Council Member Dan Garodnick.  Thank you for being

         13  here.

         14                 These proposed bills are part of a

         15  package of legislation that was drafted in the wake

         16  of several highly publicized and exceptionally

         17  brutal incidents in New York City.

         18                 It was almost exactly a year ago that

         19  Imette St. Guillen, a 24-year-old graduate student,

         20  was assaulted and strangled, and as you know, after

         21  those events Christine Quinn, Speaker Quinn,

         22  convened a nightlife summit which for the first time

         23  brought together in one room the police, the

         24  nightlife industry, experts from throughout the

         25  country, legislators and really did a lot to foster
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          2  cooperation and to put everyone on the same track,

          3  which is to make the nightlife in New York City the

          4  safest in the country, just as the City itself is.

          5                 We've come along way.  This is part

          6  of that process. Today we are going to consider two

          7  bills.  What we are doing here is increasing the

          8  power and the scope of the Nuisance Abatement Law.

          9  Right now, the Nuisance Abatement Law encompasses

         10  crimes such as prostitution, and drugs and things

         11  like underage drinking which means that a club be

         12  shut down if it violates those laws.  Right now, it

         13  can't be shut down basically if it violates other

         14  laws, such as murder, which I think is much more of

         15  a nuisance than serving an intoxicated person

         16  actually.  So these laws make sense and they were

         17  proposed by the Administration.  So we want thank

         18  them for that proposal and what that law will do is

         19  will add to the Nuisance Abatement Law crimes such

         20  as criminally negligent homicide, manslaughter,

         21  murder and felony assaults.

         22                 The other law that we will be looking

         23  at today is one that I introduced and it also will

         24  increase the power of the Nuisance Abatement Law,

         25  but it looks to go after fake id's.  So it's not
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          2  going to apply directly to the clubs, but will apply

          3  to the people who sell the id's which are used to

          4  get into these clubs.

          5                 Many of these clubs are very

          6  responsible and some even have scanners right now,

          7  but they can't stop some of these id's that are out

          8  there because they are made so well.  Many,

          9  unfortunately, are bought right here in the City.

         10  You saw a recent Post article in which the reporter

         11  walked right into two stores and bought id's right

         12  in the back and so we want to find out about that.

         13  What this law will be doing will make it a violation

         14  of the Nuisance Abatement Law to sell a fake id

         15  which will allow these places to be closed down and

         16  padlocked upon a violation of selling a fake id.  No

         17  more fines which these places consider the cost of

         18  doing business or a criminal slap on the wrist.

         19  Close the business down.  So if you've got a video

         20  store, which some of these places are, which sells

         21  fake id's in the back, you are going to shut the

         22  whole video store down.

         23                 So I think that law will also go a

         24  long way to helping curb the problem of underage

         25  drinking and fake id's aren't just a problem with
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          2  underage drinking clearly it's also a national

          3  security issue in this day and age.  So it's

          4  something we really need to focus on and that's what

          5  we are doing today.

          6                 I think that's all I need to say to

          7  start that out. We are going to hear today from

          8  Assistant Commissioner Robert Messner of the NYPD

          9  Civil Enforcement Unit.  He will be followed by

         10  representatives of the nightlife industry who will

         11  discuss their position on this bill and their

         12  position on how the Nuisance Abatement Law is being

         13  enforced right now.  Those are the only two panels

         14  that we foresee right now.  If anyone else would

         15  like to testify, please hand a card up to the

         16  Sergeant- at- Arms.  That being said, I'd like to

         17  turn the floor over to  --  We've also been joined

         18  by Council Member Erik Dilan.  Thank you.  We turn

         19  the floor over to the Police Department.  Welcome.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Good

         21  morning Chairman Vallone and members of the Council.

         22    I am Assistant Commissioner Robert Messner of the

         23  NYPD's Civil Enforcement Unit. On behalf of Police

         24  Commissioner Raymond Kelly, I am pleased to be here

         25  today to discuss the two bills before you, which
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          2  would amend the City's Nuisance Abatement Law.

          3                 The mission of the civil Enforcement

          4  Unit is to expand the Department's range of

          5  responses to crime beyond the traditional law

          6  enforcement means of criminal investigation, arrest,

          7  and prosecution.  By using the civil law, our Civil

          8  Enforcement attorneys deter and prevent crime.  This

          9  is accomplished by making crime more costly and

         10  inconvenient for criminals by denying to them the

         11  premises in which the crimes occur.  By working as

         12  part of the Police Department's overall response to

         13  crime and disorder, actions commenced by the Civil

         14  Enforcement Unit promote the safety of all New

         15  Yorkers and our guests.  We use two different types

         16  of civil actions for the purpose of fighting crime,

         17  depending upon the circumstance.

         18                 First, forfeiture is used when

         19  property comes into our custody which has either

         20  been used in a crime or was the profit of a crime.

         21  In such a case, we literally sue the owner for the

         22  property, and if we successfully demonstrate that

         23  the property is the proceeds or instrumentality of

         24  crime, the property is forfeited to the City.

         25  Forfeiture is often used, for example, when we seize
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          2  the tools used in illegal chop shops or the cars

          3  used to patronize prostitutes.  Especially notable

          4  is our use of forfeiture against cars driven by

          5  drunk drivers, cars used to transport and conceal

          6  illegal handguns, and cars used to transport and

          7  conceal illegal drugs.  These forfeiture actions

          8  make a substantial contribution to crime reduction

          9  and enhance public safety.

         10                 The second type of civil action is

         11  nuisance abatement.  The Nuisance Abatement Law

         12  provides a mechanism for the City to address

         13  premises which represent ongoing public nuisances,

         14  and to bring welcome relief to neighborhoods

         15  suffering from chronic public safety problems such a

         16  drug sales, prostitution, gambling, and illegal

         17  social clubs.  The Nuisance Abatement Law also

         18  addresses premises which present other types of

         19  problems, such as Building Code, Health Code and

         20  zoning violations.  But the Police Department's

         21  focus is on crimes, and we seek to bring a stop to

         22  criminal and dangerous public nuisances.

         23                 The Nuisance Abatement Law allows the

         24  City to seek through civil action, to permanently

         25  enjoin the continuation of a public nuisance as

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  defined in the statute.  The action is aimed at the

          3  location in which the nuisance is occurring.

          4  Therefore, the action is filed against the building

          5  itself, as well as the owner and tenants of the

          6  premises.  In connection with this action for a

          7  permanent injunction, the City may also seek a

          8  preliminary injunction and a temporary closing

          9  order.  The court may grant a temporary closing

         10  order if the City shows by clear and convincing

         11  evidence that the premises is a public nuisance and

         12  that the public safety, health or welfare requires

         13  an immediate temporary closing. The owner and tenant

         14  of the premises receives an opportunity for a

         15  hearing within three business days after the

         16  closing.

         17                 In 2006, the Civil Enforcement Unit

         18  commenced over 800 nuisance abatement actions,

         19  improving the quality of life for countless

         20  residents of the City who were given relief from

         21  intractable community problems, and preventing

         22  untold numbers of crimes from occurring in the

         23  future.  Working closely with operational commanders

         24  throughout the City to identify the most problematic

         25  locations, we bring these actions in order to deter
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          2  and eradicate crime, promote public safety, and

          3  change the behaviors which lead to the crime.

          4                 In some instances, after the nuisance

          5  abatement action is commenced, the landlord may

          6  evict criminal tenants and install in their place

          7  legitimate tenants who run legitimate businesses in

          8  the site of the former criminal enterprise.

          9  Naturally, this is good for the surrounding

         10  community, as it promotes public safety, decreases

         11  crime, and provides jobs and services to the

         12  community.

         13                 In other cases, businesses are

         14  allowed to reopen under new conditions of operation

         15  which are part of a court ordered stipulation of

         16  settlement designed to ensure that the criminal

         17  activity stops and the activity conducted on the

         18  premises remains lawful.  Owners and lessees

         19  sometimes pay a civil penalty, and if the premises

         20  are reopened in settlement of the action, they must

         21  adhere to the agreement they make, governing how

         22  they will operate the location, or face further

         23  litigation and potential re- closure.

         24                 The Nuisance Abatement Law provides

         25  specific predicates for finding a location to be a
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          2  public nuisance, such as drug sales, prostitution,

          3  illegal gambling, certain violations of the New York

          4  State Alcoholic Beverage Control Law, criminal

          5  possession of stolen property, and the law's newest

          6  and welcome addition, unlicensed security guards.

          7  It also includes a general predicate, criminal

          8  nuisance, as defined in the Penal Law.

          9                 However, Intro 515 adds what we

         10  believe is a useful element to the statutory

         11  predicates, addressing the commission of serious

         12  violence.  Intro 515 defines as a public nuisance a

         13  location where there have been two or more homicides

         14  within a year, or three or more felony assaults and

         15  or homicides with a year.

         16                 We understand that nightlife

         17  establishments are very concerned about the

         18  potential impact of this bill, and have generally

         19  expressed dismay at the use of the Nuisance

         20  Abatement Law to address criminal activity in their

         21  premises.  We have in fact begun candid discussions

         22  with the New York Nightlife Association is a Working

         23  Group to address our sometimes divergent interests.

         24  We all agree that nightlife is a vital part of the

         25  City's economy and to a large degree makes the City
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          2  what it is.  However, we submit that the repeated

          3  commission of serious violence in any establishment

          4  is cause for public concern and cannot be ignored. We

          5  also note, again, that the end result of a nuisance

          6  abatement action is to change the way the business

          7  is operated, so as to prevent violence from

          8  occurring.

          9                 Nuisance abatement is a serious

         10  remedy for serious problems, and we believe that no

         11  problem merits attention more than violence causing

         12  serious physical injury and death.  We, therefore,

         13  applaud the Council's introduction of Intro 515 and

         14  urge its approval.

         15                 We also support the introduction of

         16  Intro 484, which expands the Nuisance Abatement Law

         17  to add predicates to address the manufacture and

         18  sale of false identification documents.  The

         19  manufacture and sale of false id's also presents a

         20  challenge to law enforcement, especially because of

         21  the technology which is now available to create

         22  superior false documents and because of the

         23  proliferation of internet sales.

         24                 However, for locations in New York

         25  City where these documents are created and or sold,
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          2  Intro 484 will provide a useful new tool.  We have

          3  identified some technical issues with the bill's

          4  language which we will be pleased to discuss with

          5  your staff, and look forward to enactment of Intro

          6  484 as well.

          7                 Thank you for giving us the

          8  opportunity to lend our support to Intros 484 and

          9  515 and we will be pleased to answer any questions

         10  you may have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         12  your testimony and for your support on the fake id

         13  bill and since that's the one that will be less

         14  controversial, let's speak about that first.

         15                 Regarding fake id's now in the City,

         16  how do you target producers of these id's right now?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well,

         18  as my testimony indicated, there is a general

         19  criminal nuisance provision that qualifies in the

         20  Nuisance Abatement Law and we have had some limited

         21  use of the Nuisance Abatement Law to address

         22  locations which were manufacturing these items.  I

         23  believe they were in the 6th Precinct.  Weren't

         24  they?  Yes, the ones we did were in the 6th

         25  Precinct, but, of course, the issue there is a legal
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          2  issue in that you are not closing these places when

          3  you use a general criminal nuisance underpinning for

          4  a nuisance abatement action, you are closing

          5  locations not because there's criminality going on

          6  there, but because people are gathering to commit

          7  independent crimes.  So it raises the bar for us.

          8  It's not enough to show that an illegal id was

          9  manufactured in a location.  You actually have to

         10  show people are gathering for the purpose of

         11  manufacturing it.  It seems counter- intuitive and

         12  it seems like bad public policy to add that extra

         13  element.  What this bill does, in a very

         14  straightforward way, is say that if you're

         15  manufacturing these things, then the Nuisance

         16  Abatement Law can be used against you, and it does

         17  not impose that extra step of having to prove the

         18  gathering of people to commit the independent crime.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a very

         20  important point. Thank you for making it.  I

         21  discussed this earlier, before the hearing started,

         22  so you're going to get to us some statistics on home

         23  many arrests have been made.  Recently, I know there

         24  have been reports in the newspapers.  We'd like to

         25  have those, either verified or not, and you'll get
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          2  that to us regarding how many arrests over the last

          3  few years have been made for fake id's because,

          4  obviously, it's a huge problem, and regardless of

          5  whether this new law exists, no one should be able

          6  to walk into a store in Times Square and buy fake

          7  id's this day and age especially because of the

          8  national security concerns.  So hopefully this law

          9  will go a long way to helping you close down these

         10  places.

         11                 You said you had some technical

         12  concerns and I happen to know one of them is,

         13  hopefully the only one.  I don't really know the

         14  others.  It's the fact that the other Nuisance

         15  Abatement Laws require two or three violations in

         16  order to be shut down and you thought it might be

         17  important to have this law coincide with those.

         18  This new law says one violation and you get shut

         19  down for fake id's.

         20                 Let me tell you our thinking behind

         21  that.  When it comes to nuisance abatement of other

         22  type laws, say selling drugs, it very easily could

         23  happen and not be the fault of the establishment.

         24  If somebody sells marijuana in a bathroom to

         25  somebody else, it may not be the establishments
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          2  fault.  If it happens one time, there is nothing

          3  they can do about it.  So you're trying to prevent

          4  criminal behavior inside a location.  My bill is

          5  stopping criminal behavior by the location and I

          6  don't think anybody should be given a second chance

          7  to sell a fake id before we close them down and

          8  that's why we did it with one violation.  So I just

          9  wanted to hear what your objection would be.  I know

         10  it's not a big objection.  It's just a minor one,

         11  but why you would want us to have more than one

         12  violation for selling a fake id before we could shut

         13  a place down?

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I think the Law

         15  Department had some concerns about it, but I think

         16  we can work out a way in which if we can establish

         17  that the premises is in the business of selling then

         18  we don't need to establish multiple particular

         19  violations.  I think there's two alternatives.  The

         20  two violations could be presumptive evidence that

         21  the location is in the business of manufacturing

         22  false id's or selling them, but that doesn't mean

         23  that with other evidence we couldn't show that based

         24  on one set of arrest, one incident.  So I think we

         25  can work that out.  I think we can have both
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          2  approaches be useful.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Let me

          4  move now  -- Again, we'll have staff discuss that

          5  with you and thank you for your support on that.

          6  Let me move now to Intro 515 which increases the

          7  amount of crimes which are under our present

          8  Nuisance Abatement Law for shutting down certain

          9  locations.  We'll go through your testimony.

         10                 First of all, we've also been joined

         11  by Council Members Addabbo and who else came in?

         12  Oddo, I believe.  There he is, over there.  Thank

         13  you guys for joining us.

         14                 You started on the bottom of page one

         15  with how a civil action  --  how you do this.  So

         16  let's run through that actually.  If your typical

         17  nuisance abatement action, let's say it's at a

         18  nightclub and it's for drug sales or underage

         19  drinking sales, how do you begin the process?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: First

         21  let me respond by saying that we did over 800

         22  nuisance abatements last year.  The vast majority of

         23  them are not at clubs or nightclubs, but if we are

         24  going to assume for the purpose of your question  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Where do you do
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          2  these normally, if not nightclubs?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: All

          4  types of commercial locations.  Storefronts that are

          5  selling drugs, selling marijuana.  Storefronts where

          6  there is gambling occurring, place where there is

          7  prostitution occurring.  Last year, we were very

          8  active doing auto crime locations which look like

          9  auto repair shops.  Especially in the Bronx, we were

         10  very active doing whole auto yards.  We do a very

         11  large variety of places.  Nuisance abatement is used

         12  for a large variety of crimes in a large variety of

         13  places and really nightclubs are a small portion of

         14  what we do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well since there

         16  are no representatives from houses of prostitution

         17  waiting to testify, when this is over, in opposition

         18  to this bill.  I think we can all agree on those.

         19  What is the percentage of nuisance abatement

         20  closures that happen at nightclubs?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well,

         22  I can give you the numbers from Manhattan.  The

         23  overwhelming number of nightclubs that are closed

         24  are in Manhattan, and I have the numbers from

         25  Manhattan at my fingertips.  I can get you the
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          2  numbers for the other boroughs, but in Manhattan,

          3  for year 2006, there were 250 nuisance abatement

          4  closings; 57 were either bars or nightclubs. Now

          5  some of those are smaller bar licensed premises.  In

          6  2005, we were able to bring nuisance abatement

          7  actions against 241 locations; 30 of them were

          8  either bars or nightclubs.  So far this year, we've

          9  commenced 30 nuisance abatement actions in Manhattan

         10  as of the end of January and seven of them were bars

         11  or nightclubs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: In your

         13  testimony you say you did 800 actions, then 250 of

         14  those being nightclubs in Manhattan -

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

         16  Thirty of them were nightclubs in Manhattan.  Two

         17  hundred and fifty was the total number of nuisance

         18  abatement actions in Manhattan.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

         21  Fifty- seven of those, in 2006, were either bars or

         22  nightclubs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  All

         24  right.  So let's, again, we'll stick with the

         25  nightclubs for now.  You want to begin at one of
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          2  these actions, what's the first step you take and

          3  how does it begin?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

          5  Really before we even talk about the legal

          6  underpinnings, we have to talk about how the

          7  location is identified as a problem.

          8                 I know that you are very familiar

          9  with the Comstat process in the Police Department,

         10  but not everybody in the audience is, but the

         11  Comstat methodology was invented by the NYPD and it

         12  was invented so as to make a reasoned assessment of

         13  how to use police resources.  What are the places,

         14  what are the locations, what are the conditions that

         15  are destabilizing the communities, that are causing

         16  crimes, and how do we address in a logical and a

         17  reasoned manner how do we deploy police resources to

         18  address those crimes.

         19                 So really before we even start

         20  talking about the legal case, you have to understand

         21  that the NYPD is probably one of the few places on

         22  earth where lawyers like myself and my colleague, Al

         23  Schwartz, who is here with me, are actually rolled

         24  into the Comstat process and we attend every Comstat

         25  meeting.
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          2                 The reason we're there is because

          3  when a location comes to light as part of the

          4  Comstat process, during a Comstat presentation by a

          5  Precinct Commander, where crimes are occurring one

          6  of the resources that's present for the Police

          7  Department in the Comstat room is the Civil

          8  Enforcement Unit and Police Commanders all the way

          9  to the highest level of the Department can say hey

         10  that's sounds like a good nuisance abatement case.

         11  Are you fellows from Civil Enforcement, men and

         12  women from Civil Enforcement, are you on this?  And

         13  we'll be there and we'll say yeah, we're on it.  We

         14  have a case going already.

         15                 So it's important to remember that we

         16  as attorneys are not making decisions about how to

         17  employ police resources, that this is something

         18  that's done as the normal course of business in the

         19  Police Department through the Comstat process,

         20  identifying locations and saying what resources have

         21  to be brought to bear to address the crimes that are

         22  occurring at this location that are hurting our

         23  community and hurting the neighborhoods.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So when we hear

         25  and we're told often you target locations you don't

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  like, it's not that your throwing darts at a board

          3  and saying I don't like these locations. This is

          4  based on evidence of criminal activity at that

          5  location?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

          7  Absolutely.  It's based on all the things that go

          8  into the Comstat determination. It's based on the

          9  community complaints.  It's based on 311.  It's

         10  based on, as you know, what we call Kites.  It's

         11  based on the crime patterns that are detected

         12  through the geographic and time management mapping

         13  methodology of Comstat.  That's how these locations

         14  are identified.  Locations that are destabilizing a

         15  community by having crimes occurring in them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Once you

         17  identify location, what happens then?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Once

         19  a location is identified as potentially appropriate

         20  for a nuisance abatement case, we do what a lawyer

         21  will normally do in litigation.  We start talking to

         22  the witnesses.  We start gathering documentary

         23  evidence. In a nuisance abatement case, normally we

         24  have to demonstrate enough incidence either in the

         25  case say of a narcotics nuisance abatement case,
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          2  there is a mandatory minimum number of incidents

          3  that we have to demonstrate, three incidents within

          4  a year.

          5                 In other types of crimes, like

          6  prostitution, we have to demonstrate that the crimes

          7  are ongoing in nature.  You can only commence a

          8  nuisance abatement action against a place where a

          9  crime is ongoing in nature.  So we begin to talk to

         10  the witnesses.  We talk to the undercover officers.

         11  We talk to civilian witnesses. We begin to gather

         12  the paperwork that can prove to the court that there

         13  is a public nuisance.  As we are gathering all of

         14  our evidence, we are also talking to the Police

         15  Commanders who are responsible for this area to ask

         16  them is this a troubling place for you?  Is this a

         17  place that you want the Department to devote it's

         18  resources to to commence this action?  Is this a

         19  place where your witnesses can testify?

         20                 You might have locations, for

         21  example, where undercover officers are in an active

         22  investigation where you wouldn't want to commence a

         23  nuisance abatement action because you couldn't put

         24  your undercover witnesses on to testify.

         25                 If there is a consensus between the
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          2  lawyers for legal purposes that there's sufficient

          3  documentary evidence to commence a nuisance

          4  abatement action and if there is agreement from the

          5  operational side of the Police Department that this

          6  is a location that merits commencing a nuisance

          7  abatement action then we draw up a set of nuisance

          8  abatement papers.  We draw up the papers to present

          9  them to a judge.

         10                 The law specifies that this is done

         11  in an ex-parte manner, that we don't tell the other

         12  side.  We don't tell the people who are, hopefully,

         13  about to be nuisance abated that we are commencing

         14  an action.  We are allowed to, and the law specifies

         15  that we go to a judge in an ex-parte manner, no

         16  notice to the other side.

         17                 The papers  --  I actually brought

         18  one today because I thought you would be interested

         19  to see what the papers looked like.  The papers have

         20  to support every allegation made against the

         21  location with sworn evidence.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before you get

         23  to those papers, so you make a decision.  There must

         24  be sometimes where you don't have the requisite

         25  amount of violations and you need to get that. At
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          2  this point, do you start an operation to  --  You

          3  have a club, you want to close it down because of

          4  complaints, but perhaps you don't have three

          5  violations within the year, what do you do?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well,

          7  at that point, if our clients, the Precinct

          8  Commander is saying that this is a troubling

          9  location for him or her because of the crime that's

         10  occurring therein then investigatory arms of our

         11  Department, most likely Vice or Narcotics, will

         12  commence an investigation, but they're going to

         13  commence an investigation on a location anyway. Once

         14  the location is identified as troublesome, whoever

         15  can investigate a location and try to address the

         16  crime that is occurring therein is going to start.

         17  They don't just start that for the purposes of

         18  nuisance abating.  That's how the Department

         19  responds to reports of crime.  So if we have a

         20  report, for example, that there's a location and

         21  they are selling alcohol to underage individuals,

         22  Vice is immediately commence an investigation to

         23  determine what's going on in the location.  If our

         24  review indicates there is not sufficient evidence,

         25  which is what you asked, then, yes, we will wait to
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          2  see the results of the Vice investigation.  If Vice,

          3  and I'm using Vice because I'm assuming it's

          4  underage, if Vice then does determine that there are

          5  underage alcohol sales going on in a location then

          6  after that evidence is brought to us, after they are

          7  successful in getting that evidence, we will

          8  commence the action.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  To the extent

         10  that you can tell us, what are some ways that that

         11  would be determined, that underage drinking is going

         12  on?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: There

         14  are several ways, but one way is to send an underage

         15  person into a location and they are sent in with no

         16  id and they are told when they're asked for id to

         17  say I don't have any id and when they're asked their

         18  age to tell the truth and if they are not asked for

         19  their id and they're served alcohol, that's actually

         20  a violation.  The Department does not use people who

         21  are over 21 to portray being under 21.  We actually

         22  use people under 21.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Who are these

         24  people?  They don't work for you obviously.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:
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          2  Cadets.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Cadets.  Okay.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Also,

          5  we get crime reports where victims come to us.

          6  Unfortunately, it's often in upsetting cases, rape

          7  cases, assault cases, where a victim will come to us

          8  and say I'm 19 years old and I was drinking at such

          9  and such a place, or I went into such and such

         10  bodega, and I bought beer, and I drank it with my

         11  friends and then I got beaten up.  So during the

         12  course of criminal investigations, evidence will

         13  often come to our attention about underage people

         14  consuming alcohol.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  So you

         16  begin a --

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: As I

         18  said, our papers have to be in this rather large set

         19  of nuisance abatement papers, we're starting a

         20  nuisance abatement action by summons and complaint

         21  and we're also asking the judge who is going to

         22  review these papers to issue a temporary restraining

         23  order ordering the location to stop committing

         24  crimes.  We are also asking for a temporary closing

         25  order ordering the location closed until a hearing
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          2  can be held or until the judge has an opportunity to

          3  bring the parties in and find out what's going on at

          4  the location.

          5                 Now to support the temporary closing

          6  order and the temporary restraining order, every

          7  allegation in the papers is supported by sworn

          8  evidence.  We use certified copies of police

          9  paperwork and we also have sworn statements of

         10  witnesses right in the papers.

         11                 Once the papers are prepared, and I

         12  think this might be the most important thing I say

         13  this morning, once the papers are prepared every

         14  nuisance abatement application is reviewed by a

         15  judge.  This is not a discretionary function of the

         16  Police Department.  Once we decide that we have a

         17  problem, we ask a judge for relief, and the judge

         18  makes that determination based upon a set of papers

         19  that contain sworn evidence of every allegation

         20  contained therein.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How many times

         22  does a judge approve these as opposed to

         23  disapproving it?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well

         25  when we take our papers to a judge, one of several
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          2  things can happen in any lawsuit.  In a nuisance

          3  abatement lawsuit, because we are asking for a

          4  temporary closing order and a temporary restraining

          5  order, what we see happen is sometimes the judge

          6  will say to us well you've demonstrated to me that

          7  there is enough going on to commence a lawsuit, and

          8  you've demonstrated to me that there's enough for me

          9  to order criminal activity to stop, but you haven't

         10  demonstrated enough, in this particular case, for me

         11  to issue a temporary closing order.

         12                 I am happy to say that no times are

         13  our cases dismissed does the judge say no, you've

         14  proved nothing, I dismiss your case.

         15                 As I said, in 2006, we commenced a

         16  total of 250 nuisance abatement actions in

         17  Manhattan; 126 times the judge issued a temporary

         18  closing order; 93 times the judge said I'm not going

         19  to issue a temporary closing order.  I'm only going

         20  to issue a restraining order ordering that all

         21  criminal activity stop and ordering appear the

         22  parties to appear for me within three days. Four

         23  times out of the 250, judges said I am not convinced

         24  you've demonstrated enough to get either a temporary

         25  closing order or a temporary restraining order.
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          2  I'll let you file your action and bring the parties

          3  before me in three days so we can discuss what's

          4  going on.  No times were our actions dismissed.

          5                 Now the figures I quote you are from

          6  Manhattan and I have to tell you that Manhattan

          7  presents somewhat of an anomaly. In the other

          8  boroughs, you would see, probably in Brooklyn, a

          9  similar number of nuisance abatement cases commenced

         10  and you would see almost no restraining orders,

         11  maybe two or three.  In all the other boroughs that

         12  make up our City, closing orders are issued almost

         13  every time, and we believe that it has to do with

         14  the Manhattan judiciary and their analysis of cases

         15  that that's the one borough where we are sometimes,

         16  in the case of 2006 maybe about a third of the time,

         17  we are not granted a closing order, but are only

         18  granted a restraining order.

         19                 Now, make no mistake, a restraining

         20  order indicates that the judge is sufficiently

         21  convinced that there's criminal activity going on

         22  that the judge is ordering, specifically, that all

         23  criminal activity stop and the parties appear before

         24  him or her, before the judge, three days later.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I guess some
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          2  would argue that those numbers show what an

          3  excellent job you are doing while preparing your

          4  cases, while others I assume could only come up and

          5  argue that shows that the process is unfair, but

          6  we'll let that argument be made later on I guess.

          7                 You go to court and then what

          8  happens?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Very

         10  typically when our opposition sees the detail that's

         11  contained in our papers they come to court with an

         12  idea of stopping the nuisance activity and reopening

         13  the business.  In some instances, we are very

         14  receptive to that if it's a legitimate business.  If

         15  it's not a legitimate business, it's very simple, we

         16  don't have any interest in having the place reopen.

         17  What we want to happen is we want the people who are

         18  committing the crimes inside the place to be forced

         19  out by their landlord and a new legitimate business

         20  to go in there.

         21                 Let me give an illustration.  When we

         22  started doing this, on the Lower East Side, there

         23  were many, many, many stores that pretended to be

         24  all different types of things.  They pretended to be

         25  grocery stores.  They pretended to be laundromats,
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          2  but there was no real activity going on there.  What

          3  was happening there was they were selling drugs in

          4  the storefront.  You'd go in the storefront, there

          5  would be a bunch of dusty groceries and they half

          6  way back there would be what looked like a tellers

          7  window in a bank, and behind that window would be

          8  someone who was selling small quantities of

          9  marijuana, or controlled substances, through the

         10  window and that's all they did.  In locations like

         11  that, we had no interest in returning that business.

         12    What we wanted was we wanted those criminals and

         13  we wanted the landlord to put a legitimate business

         14  in.

         15                 I've been doing this a long time.  In

         16  1995  --  I'm sometimes amazed at how long I've been

         17  doing this.  In 1995, the New York Times as part of

         18  their Year in Review process wrote an article saying

         19  how the 67 nuisance abatement cases that had been

         20  commenced on the Lower East Side were responsible

         21  for the Lower East Side starting to flourish and

         22  people started to see something that they hadn't

         23  seen in the Lower East Side in many years,

         24  restaurants, art galleries, and boutiques were

         25  replacing these drug spots.  Of course, we all know,
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          2  11 years hence, what the Lower East Side is now

          3  like.  It's the trendiest place in New York.  So

          4  that is an example of when you get bad guys out and

          5  get good businesses in how places can flourish.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think we can

          7  all agree that the illegitimate places need to be

          8  shut down.  Now let's assume you've go a place that

          9  is attempting to be responsible and wants to work

         10  with you.  What's the next step?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Very

         12  typically, in almost every case, what happens is, in

         13  the case of a legitimate business, their attorney

         14  comes to us and says look we want to get the

         15  nuisance activity out as well.  What do we need to

         16  do?  Let's come up with some terms, conditions that

         17  will end the nuisance activity and allow our

         18  business to go on and what we do is we work together

         19  with the attorney for the business to come up with a

         20  settlement, a stipulated settlement, in other words,

         21  a court ordered settlement, that specifies things

         22  that the business has to do to make sure that the

         23  nuisance activity does not continue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Such as?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Since
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          2  we've been, to a large degree, talking about clubs,

          3  there are a lot of terms that can apply to clubs.

          4  Some of them are things as simple and

          5  straightforward as making sure that all security

          6  guards are licensed.  As you know, before the

          7  Council amended the Nuisance Abatement Law that was

          8  something that was not always done.  So making sure

          9  that clubs have licensed security guards is a big

         10  thing.  Specifying what the clubs policy will be for

         11  admission is; what age people will be admitted?

         12  Will people be searched?  What will they be searched

         13  for?  Will there be magnetometers?  Will the club

         14  use id scanners to check for the presence of false

         15  id and to record the people who enter the club?

         16  Will there be cameras to ensure people's safety?

         17  Also making sure that the cameras are functioning

         18  because what we found out in many places is that

         19  they have cameras and the cameras aren't maintained

         20  and they don't function.  Having a security plan and

         21  having an employees standards handbook making sure

         22  that all the employees understand that crimes such

         23  as underage drinking, such as drug use and drug sale

         24  will not be tolerated and that employees who

         25  facilitate that conduct, or turn a blind eye to it,
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          2  will be dismissed as part of the club's own

          3  policies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What about a

          5  monitor?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Often

          7  we ask for a security monitor especially in large

          8  clubs which have large security forces.

          9                 The idea of a security monitor is

         10  rooted in the concept of the IPSIG, the Independent

         11  Public Sector Inspector General.  The IPSIG was an

         12  idea that came out of government prosecutions of

         13  businesses which when they resumed activity needed

         14  to be monitored.  The government didn't have the

         15  resources to monitor the business the way it

         16  monitors itself.  Most agencies, most government

         17  entities have an Inspector General that monitors the

         18  agency for ethical violations and other types of

         19  violations, but the government didn't have the

         20  resources to monitor various businesses.

         21                 So starting in the 1980's, this

         22  concept of the IPSIG came up and what it specified

         23  was that businesses that wanted to operate which had

         24  a history of problems would pay for a private

         25  monitor to monitor the business and report back to
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          2  the government to make sure that the business was

          3  functioning appropriately.

          4                 So the use of monitors is based on

          5  that IPSIG idea. What we do is we ask the clubs to

          6  hire a well credentialed firm, that has experience

          7  in this type of business to monitor the operation of

          8  the firm to make that people's id's are being

          9  checked, to make sure that the searches that the

         10  clubs agreed to are being conducted.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What type of

         12  firms are these? These aren't police monitors?

         13  These are  --

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

         15  They're security firms.  They are private.  Many of

         16  them are retired law enforcement people who are now

         17  security consultants and some of them are not

         18  retired government people but there are some big

         19  names that you hear all the time like Krull

         20  Associates is a big name.  FIA is a big name and

         21  then there are some smaller ones.  The monitors job

         22  is to be present and watch the operation of the club

         23  and report back to club management and to the Police

         24  about the problems that are occurring at the club.

         25  This ensures that the club is living up to the
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          2  agreement that they made when they settled the

          3  nuisance abatement action.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  So you

          5  issue these closing orders, but I've heard this

          6  complaint many times, and I'm not taking a position

          7  for either side.  I'm going to ask the other side

          8  the same type of questions.  I'd rather hear from

          9  you, since the allegations will be made later, I'd

         10  rather hear what you have to say about it now.  We

         11  are going to be told later on, and as I've been told

         12  many times before, is that these closing orders

         13  invariably occur on Fridays which close down the

         14  clubs for their most profitable times.  So, first of

         15  all, is that actually the case?  Is there a

         16  percentage of these that happen on Fridays?  Why

         17  would that be?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: In

         19  the case of clubs, the closing often happens on

         20  Friday and the reason for that is that there are two

         21  nights when you know a club is going to be open.

         22  It's going to be open Friday and it's going to be

         23  open Saturday.  From a legal perspective, we have a

         24  difficult time when you have a nuisance abatement

         25  action the judge usually orders a very, very short
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          2  time period for service because you have to be back

          3  in court within three days.  We usually have to

          4  serve that night.  So from a legal perspective, it's

          5  very important that someone be at the club, any

          6  location, not just the club.  We try to close places

          7  when they are open so that we can effect service.

          8  We can give the papers to a manager and make sure

          9  that they are going to get to the attorney in time

         10  for that three day turn around.

         11                 Also, it seems to fly against common

         12  sense to get a closing order on a location and go to

         13  it when it's closed and close it because it's

         14  already closed.  So it seems specious to do that. We

         15  like to close locations, all locations, not just

         16  clubs and nightclubs, but all of the 819 locations

         17  that we did last year when they are open and

         18  operating so that we sure that they get notified of

         19  the action, that they understand what the problem

         20  is, and why they are being closed and we know that

         21  they'll be able to come back three days later in

         22  court, that very short turnaround period, and have

         23  something to say so that we can move forward and end

         24  the nuisance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now we also hear

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  that some of these agreements are agreed to under

          3  duress because if they don't, they are going to

          4  remain closed.  Answer that first of all and explain

          5  how this could be if there is an opportunity to be

          6  heard in court in three days.  Does your agreement

          7  occur with them prior to those three days, in court,

          8  after those three days?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: The

         10  agreements can occur at any time.  It's not unusual

         11  to actually have the agreement hammered out before

         12  we're back in court for three days.  But in many

         13  cases, it takes a while for the agreement to be

         14  hammered out, and almost always, judges will listen

         15  to the assurances of the other side that they will

         16  address the criminal activity that's creating the

         17  public nuisance and judges will reopen places based

         18  on the assurance of the respondent that they will

         19  address the public nuisance.  They will re- open

         20  them.  I can't think of a club that stayed closed

         21  for a protracted period of time while we hammered

         22  out an agreement.

         23                 What we are looking for is an

         24  acknowledgment that yes we understand the problem

         25  and we will address it.  So, almost all of these
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          2  clubs are able to reopen and either before they

          3  reopen, or very shortly thereafter, we're able to

          4  come to an agreement that we believe will end the

          5  public nuisance conduct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  I'm going

          7  to come back to this process.  I also have many

          8  questions on  --  not that many, but some on why we

          9  picked these certain laws and things like that, but

         10  I don't want my colleagues to wait forever.

         11                 First of all, let me introduce Ellen

         12  Foster, who stopped by and I know Melinda Katz was

         13  here.  She has a hearing next door, Land Use and go

         14  to Erik Dilan for questions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair, and I'll be very brief.  Commissioner

         17  Messner, both of these bills are being amended and

         18  they have significant impacts on buildings and

         19  dwellings and it specifically calls out one and two-

         20  family homes in writing.  They both amend multiple

         21  sections of code which I haven't had the opportunity

         22  to review at this time.  Could you just basically

         23  state for me the impact to owners of the properties?

         24    I think I understand the impact on the business

         25  owners.  I would imagine they all end, or could end,

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  in forfeiture of property, but could you maybe just

          3  spell out, if it does lead to forfeiture of

          4  property, the steps from the notice that the tenant

          5  is engaging in illegal activity all the way to

          6  forfeiture?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: The

          8  Nuisance Abatement Law does not end up in forfeiture

          9  of property.  There is not forfeiture aspect of the

         10  Nuisance Abatement Law.  The Nuisance Abatement Law

         11  asks for a temporary closing order ordering a place

         12  locked down or closed until the court is assured

         13  that the public nuisance conduct stops.  There is no

         14  provision of the Nuisance Abatement Law that rests

         15  ownership away from the property owner, so from that

         16  point of view, there is really no reason for

         17  property owners to worry.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: So say you have

         19  a 50-unit building, you've got one apartment that's

         20  I guess engaged in distributing false id's, what

         21  would they have to do?  That tenant would be forced

         22  out?  There would be a legal proceeding that starts.

         23  What would the steps be?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well,

         25  we, as a policy, do not use the Nuisance Abatement
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          2  Law as a substitute for eviction processes in

          3  people's residences.

          4                 The Nuisance Abatement Law really

          5  primarily concerns businesses.  Now that's not to

          6  say that apartments or private homes cannot be

          7  involved in nuisance abatement.  We commence actions

          8  against apartments or private homes if our

          9  investigation has led us to believe that there are

         10  no residents in the premises, except the actual

         11  criminals. If there are family members, we look to

         12  other remedies because we are concerned about --  We

         13  do not believe it's appropriate to use the Nuisance

         14  Abatement Law as a substitute for eviction statutes.

         15                 If, however, I think I should expand,

         16  if you have, as you said, a fifty unit building, and

         17  you have one unit that is involved in criminal

         18  activity, be it production of false id's, be it

         19  drugs, be it prostitution, if our investigation

         20  reveals that it is appropriate to go forward on

         21  nuisance abatement, we do not seek to close the

         22  entire 50- unit building.  We would seek to close

         23  the one apartment, we would get a closing order

         24  against the apartment where the criminal activity is

         25  occurring.  We would then go into court and ask the
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          2  landlord to evict whoever is the tenant of record,

          3  who our experience is, is almost never the criminal.

          4  The criminal is always some unknown person who

          5  usually never shows up to court.  The tenant of

          6  record seems to be long gone, most often, and has

          7  let the criminal use the apartment.  We ask the

          8  landlord to get that  --  to end the tenancy rights

          9  of that tenant through an eviction process and then

         10  to relet it to a legitimate tenant and then the

         11  action is over.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, and my

         13  final question is I guess every section that is

         14  amended also says including one and two- family

         15  homes.  Why do you think that's important?  What

         16  further tool does that give the Department to spell

         17  out the one and two family homes specifically?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

         19  That's mirroring the traditional language of the

         20  Nuisance Abatement Law and I believe that the

         21  Nuisance Abatement Law is a written in very broad

         22  terms, the law starts off any building, erection or

         23  place.  I think the Nuisance Abatement Law by it's

         24  own terms was trying to make sure that people

         25  understand that any type of premises where crime is
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          2  occurring is fair game if it meets the criteria.

          3                 As I said before, we will not only do

          4  buildings, but we will do auto repair yards where

          5  it's just a fenced- in yard. That comes into play in

          6  nuisance abatement.

          7                   So I believe that the language was

          8  so that is mirrors the original language of the

          9  Nuisance Abatement Law making clear that any type of

         10  premises is fair game if it meets the criteria.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you.

         12  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         14  Council Member.  Now we go to Council Member

         15  Garodnick.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman. Commissioner, thank you for being here

         18  and to everybody.

         19                 I wanted to talk about Intro 515

         20  specifically and talk about the predicates for

         21  nuisance abatement.  The way I understand, and you

         22  can just correct me my articulation of this is

         23  wrong.  This is sort of a philosophical undercurrent

         24  of the Nuisance Abatement Law is to try to address

         25  ongoing problems you that you might not otherwise be
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          2  able to address in this manner. You gave us certain

          3  predicates, drug sales, prostitution, gambling and

          4  things which have an ongoing nature.  My question

          5  for you is -  You mention also in you testimony the

          6  concept of criminal nuisance as a predicate for the

          7  Nuisance Abatement Law and it would seem to me, just

          8  from a layperson's understanding of criminal

          9  nuisance, that the elements that we are talking

         10  about here, either homicide, or felony assaults, or

         11  homicide would by included in that.  Is that not

         12  correct?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: It's

         14  a difficult legal case to say that it is and I'll

         15  explain why.  There are two parts to the criminal

         16  nuisance statute.  One of them, the one I mentioned

         17  when I talked about how we've used nuisance

         18  abatement against forged identification documents is

         19  people gathering to commit independent crimes.  For

         20  us to use that standard against a location where

         21  people are being killed, for example, where there

         22  are homicides occurring, you would have to show that

         23  people were gathering at the location for the

         24  purpose of being killed.  That's a hard standard to

         25  prove in court.  It's difficult to say that people
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          2  are gathering to either be killed or to kill others

          3  for that specific purpose.

          4                 The other standard that you can use

          5  in criminal nuisance is an inherently unsafe

          6  condition.  Well it's difficult to make out the case

          7  that a location is an inherently unsafe location if

          8  it meets all of the guidelines for whatever codes

          9  and rules are applicable.  However, it just so

         10  happens that people routinely get assaulted and

         11  killed there.  It's very difficult to point out to

         12  what condition make it inherently unsafe.

         13                 So I believe, and I think it's the

         14  feeling of the Administration as well, that this law

         15  will close an anomaly, a loophole if you will, that

         16  exists in the law.  That you can nuisance abate

         17  places for some misdemeanor crimes, crimes that are

         18  not even felonies.  But, at the same time, you can't

         19  nuisance abate someplace for homicides, the most

         20  serious crime of all.  I think that's, if you want

         21  to talk about a philosophical underpinning, I think

         22  that's the philosophical underpinning.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I

         24  appreciate that.  It would seem to me just from

         25  understanding that purpose of the law that if you
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          2  were to be able to shut down an establishment for

          3  those lesser crimes then you certainly be able to

          4  shut them down for the more serious ones.  I guess

          5  the only question that I had and I think I

          6  understand from your explanation is that it's not

          7  that you could not succeed in an action under

          8  nuisance abatement for an inherently unsafe

          9  condition where the predicate was homicide.  It's

         10  just that this gives you an extra legal hook to be

         11  able to be successful in that.  Is that fair?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: I

         13  don't know if I would say it gives us a hook to be

         14  more successful, but I certainly would say it closes

         15  a loophole that might prevent a location from being

         16  justly closed to benefit society as a whole.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let me ask

         18  you about the --  I was reading the article that was

         19  in The Sun today, and I'm anticipating the testimony

         20  from the Nightlife Association in a minute, so let

         21  me ask you a question about a violation versus

         22  conviction.  The proposed law Intro 515 in Section 3

         23  (O) and in Section 3 (P) it refers to either two or

         24  more violations coming from these sections of the

         25  penal code and that's the 125 sections, presumably
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          2  that's the homicide section, and then (P) refers to

          3  the sections from 120 and 125 which I guess is the

          4  combination of felony assault or a homicide.  Can

          5  you explain to me one, violation, exactly what that

          6  means, in the context of the penal code, and also if

          7  you could address the issue of why it should be a

          8  violation as opposed to a conviction in this context

          9  that would lead to be that predicate for the use of

         10  the Nuisance Abatement Law here.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: The

         12  violation means an incident.  It means an

         13  occurrence.  It does not  --  That's how violation

         14  is used in the Nuisance Abatement Law.  It means if

         15  this happens.

         16                 There are several reasons why the

         17  Nuisance Abatement Law never used convictions.

         18  First of all, the Nuisance Abatement Law is meant to

         19  be used very quickly.  I once, unfortunately, in

         20  talking to the New York Times made the mistake of

         21  referring to the Nuisance Abatement Law as legal

         22  Sumo wrestling and I've been teased about that for

         23  the five years since it happened.  But the Nuisance

         24  Abatement Law is meant to happen very quickly

         25  because ongoing crimes are occurring and the point
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          2  of the Nuisance Abatement Law is to stop additional

          3  ongoing crimes.  If you have a homicide case, if you

          4  have a drug sale case, that case could take a year

          5  and a half to get to trial before there can be a

          6  conviction, and it would be terrible public policy

          7  to say that a place where serious crimes are

          8  occurring has to remain open during the pendency of

          9  the criminal case.  It would also be terrible public

         10  policy to say well then the government has a duty to

         11  rush that prosecution through to achieve a

         12  conviction so that this place can be closed.  That

         13  would be terrible public policy because that would

         14  negatively impact the criminal defendant.  The

         15  criminal defendant has a set of constitutional

         16  rights that are completely divergent from the people

         17  who operate the place where the criminal nuisance,

         18  the nuisance abatement action is occurring and you

         19  couldn't have a public policy that called upon

         20  prosecutors to rush people's prosecutions so that

         21  the places where the crimes are occurring could be

         22  shut.

         23                 Additionally, the ultimate

         24  disposition in a criminal case should be in no way

         25  dependent upon what happens in a nuisance abatement
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          2  action.  People are given plea bargains based upon

          3  their personal records.  I'm a former prosecutor.  A

          4  person who has no prior criminal history is usually,

          5  justifiably, allowed to plea to a much lesser crime.

          6    If you will, it's the old one bite at the apple.

          7  And that, I submit to you, society views is

          8  appropriate. Everybody should have a chance to clean

          9  up their act, but, unfortunately, given that as a

         10  truism in our criminal justice system, that would

         11  prevent most nuisance abatement actions.

         12                 It's not appropriate to link the

         13  ultimate disposition of a criminal case, which

         14  depends upon the background of the criminal

         15  defendant, to what's going to happen a place where

         16  crimes are occurring and is hurting and

         17  destabilizing a community.

         18                 And a third reason why it's not

         19  appropriate is in a case of crimes like prostitution

         20  you very rarely have a conviction to the crime.

         21  Prostitution is a B misdemeanor.  It's usually plea

         22  bargained down one, which then goes to a discon,

         23  which is less than a crime.  So prostitution and

         24  other crimes that are low level you would

         25  practically prevent any place from being nuisance
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          2  abated by requiring a conviction.

          3                 So for those three reasons, I believe

          4  that it would be terribly unsound public policy to

          5  link nuisance abatement with convictions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

          7  One last question, it relates to the ongoing process

          8  in cases where you pursue a particular

          9  establishment.  It goes to court.  A court says okay

         10  we're going to allow you to reopen under certain

         11  conditions provided you clean up your act in one way

         12  or the other.  Who is responsible for the ongoing

         13  maintenance of that establishment to ensure that it

         14  is living up to the terms of it's settlement and the

         15  courts requirements on it, or have you found that

         16  you need to re commence actions in certain

         17  circumstances where that has been imposed?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: By

         19  who is responsible, the management of the location

         20  if they've stipulated, if they've agreed to do

         21  certain things to abate the nuisance, they're

         22  responsible.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: They're

         24  responsible for abating the nuisance, but my

         25  question is let's say they are not successful or do
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          2  not live up to the terms of their arrangement?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: We

          4  will often go back into court in the case of

          5  stipulation violations and ask a court to rehear the

          6  matter and sometimes we ask for a re- closure

          7  because crimes are going on.  We get reports from

          8  the monitors.  We obviously send in our own

          9  investigators.  There have been instances where

         10  management was not successful or maybe wasn't really

         11  trying to stop the criminal nuisance.

         12                 In fact, again, these are only

         13  Manhattan statistics, but I told you that in 2006 in

         14  Manhattan, we closed 250 nuisance abatement

         15  locations, of those 57 were licensed for on- premise

         16  consumption.  In other words, they were either bars

         17  or nightclubs. We had, of the 57, we had 12

         18  instances of the times where we went back to court

         19  with a stipulation violation saying Judge, this

         20  isn't going well.  There are additional crimes going

         21  on.  Here's our evidence of additional crimes and

         22  we're asking you to, again, get them to stop.

         23  Either re- close them or let's have a more serious

         24  effort here.  So of 57, 12 ended up in a stipulation

         25  violation.  Of the 250 closed in Manhattan, 27 ended
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          2  up in stipulation violations. That's Manhattan only.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And those

          4  stipulation violations were determined by your

          5  sending in follow- up teams to investigate that

          6  these stipulations were being adhered to or was it

          7  from complaints in the community?  What was  --

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: All

          9  of the things, from complaints, from the monitors

         10  reports, and from our own Department investigators

         11  going in.  Also from the reports of crime victims.

         12  It could be from any source.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I'm sorry.

         14  Explain the monitors reports very quickly.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well

         16  the monitor very often in a large club, in a large

         17  business, we'll come to an agreement and one of the

         18  terms of the agreement is that a location will hire

         19  a monitor to perform the duties of an Inspector

         20  General to monitor the ongoing operation of the

         21  location to make sure that all the agreements in the

         22  stipulation are being upheld.

         23                 For example, to make sure that id's

         24  are being checked.  If they agreed to searches at

         25  the door to make sure that searches are occurring at
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          2  the door, to make sure that people are actually

          3  wearing their wristbands, to make sure that the

          4  waiters at the bottle service are not just handing

          5  bottles over to patrons who are pouring drinks for

          6  underage, to make sure that there aren't drug

          7  dealers roaming the floor in the place, to make sure

          8  that the bathrooms aren't being used for drug

          9  dealing and for drug consumption, all of those

         10  things that were agreed to in to the settlement.

         11  That's what the monitor checks up on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I see.  So

         13  the monitor is actually part of the settlement where

         14  the establishment agrees to have somebody who is

         15  independent to watch over and make sure that the

         16  terms are being agreed to.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: And

         18  report back to both the club and the Police

         19  Department.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         25  Councilman.  You testified that in '06, I believe 57
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          2  clubs in Manhattan  --

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: I'm

          4  sorry.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: In '06, 57

          6  closed in Manhattan were subject to nuisance

          7  abatement?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well

          9  57 bars and clubs, places that are licensed for on-

         10  premise consumption.  That can be very small places

         11  also, any place that's licensed for on premise

         12  consumption.  In other words, what we call a gin

         13  mill, or what people my age used to call a gin mill,

         14  which are not clubs, don't meet the definition of

         15  club.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, out of

         17  those, how many were closed?  How many were reopened

         18  despite your efforts to close them?  How many

         19  reopened as part of an agreement?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: I'm

         21  not sure I understand your question.  How many

         22  reopened without any agreement?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Did any

         24  successfully fight your action?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So then how many

          3  were reopened out of the total as part of an

          4  agreement?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: I'm

          6  just going to double check with my colleague for one

          7  second.

          8                 The majority there was a resolution.

          9  There were a couple who went out of business.  For

         10  example, a club called Exit, went out of business

         11  after it's third  --  It was it's third nuisance

         12  abatement and I think they'd also lost their

         13  license, their SLA license at that point, so they

         14  went out of business.  So you really can't say that

         15  there was an agreement there, but there are no clubs

         16  that have reopened with no agreement and have been

         17  able to get our action dismissed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As you know, we

         19  are going to hear, when you're finished, from

         20  representatives of the nightlife industry including

         21  representatives from Club Sol, Cro- Bar, Lotus and,

         22  I believe, but I don't know for sure, but I believe

         23  they've all been closed recently under this so

         24  they're going to be testifying about those

         25  experiences.
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          2                 I know that we discussed this earlier

          3  about closing on Friday's, but in many of these

          4  clubs that are closed, and I happen to know some of

          5  them are respectable and try very hard to work with

          6  us here at the Council, and I'm sure they try very

          7  hard to work with you, are closed on a Friday.

          8  Their concern is it's clear that they are open other

          9  nights of the week.  They are major clubs and they

         10  can't get to a court on a Saturday or a Sunday, when

         11  you close them on a Friday.  So why isn't that taken

         12  into consideration when you make the closures?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

         14  Actually, many of the clubs are able to go to the

         15  Appellate Division and get these orders lifted

         16  during the weekend.  That happens routinely.  In

         17  fact, the attorneys from my office will often go sit

         18  in the office and wait for the phone call on their

         19  own time during the weekend. So that does happen.

         20  But, again, if we  --  I don't want to be

         21  repetitive, but I told you the reasons why we

         22  believe it's important that we do it in a way the

         23  ensures service and that ensures that places are

         24  open when we close them because to close places that

         25  are closed is a non- sequitur.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I understand and

          3  I don't disagree with your reasoning at all, but if

          4  you know a club is open on a Tuesday, and you shut

          5  them down, they're not losing the massive amounts of

          6  money they would lose if they're closed Wednesday

          7  and Thursday working out an agreement with you than

          8  they are if you close them on a Friday or Saturday.

          9  The idea here is not to hurt an economic engine of

         10  the City, the idea is to improve and close the ones

         11  you want closed and work with the ones you want to

         12  work with.  So I am just wondering why we couldn't

         13  do more of these during the week, if you knew that

         14  they were open during the week.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: What

         16  we're always driven by is trying to prevent the next

         17  ongoing crime and that's really what drives us,

         18  trying to have a good case and prevent that next

         19  ongoing crime.  If there were more people in the

         20  place, that's more people that have the potential to

         21  be hurt by that ongoing crime.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Again, I'd

         23  rather ask you these questions now than hear about

         24  it and not know what your response is going to be.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: I
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          2  appreciate the opportunity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I've also heard

          4  about these multi- agency responses to community hot

          5  spot teams and I don't know all that much about them

          6  so if you could explain how they are used in this

          7  process and basically that.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well

          9  the multi agency response to community hot spots is

         10  something that started several years ago in the

         11  Police Department where several agencies with

         12  enforcement powers in licensed premises will gather

         13  and will go out together to perform their normal

         14  inspection duties on all types of licensed premises.

         15    They do it together and the reason that they do it

         16  together is because, going back when this started in

         17  the very early 90's, what the Police Department

         18  realized is that there were a lot of places that

         19  were never getting inspected by some of these

         20  outside agencies because the inspectors were afraid

         21  to go into them.  So the inspectors said we're not

         22  going into these places.  They're never going to get

         23  inspected.  We don't feel safe. We feel our personal

         24  safety is compromised.  So the Police Department

         25  started these multi- agency response, or MARCH
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          2  operations, so that the inspectors from the other

          3  agencies could go into these places with a feeling

          4  of security.  There are still places like that, that

          5  might be intimidating for outside inspectors,

          6  remember they are not law enforcement officers, to

          7  go into.

          8                 This program has given the Police

          9  Department, and the City as a whole, an opportunity

         10  to make sure that places that have to be licensed,

         11  that have requirements by the Buildings Department,

         12  for example, the Health Department, Consumer

         13  Affairs, to make sure that they're living up to the

         14  requirements to operate this type of business.

         15                 There are always questions about how

         16  locations are picked for a MARCH operation, and,

         17  again, this goes back to the Department's Comstat

         18  methodology.  We, as attorneys, do not pick the

         19  locations, nor do the individual inspectors from the

         20  individual agencies.  The Department picks the

         21  locations that are to be viewed through it's normal

         22  methodology of applying resources to places that

         23  seem to be absorbing police resources, where crimes

         24  seem to be occurring.  So in the place of MARCH

         25  operations, which are conducted at the precinct
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          2  level, the decision is made at the level of precinct

          3  management which locations will be visited at any

          4  given time.  The management team of a precinct which

          5  will, as you know Councilman, include the Precinct

          6  CO, the Precinct XO, the Special Operations

          7  Lieutenants and other specialized management level

          8  people at the precinct will sit down, and they will

          9  come up with a list of places that are absorbing a

         10  disproportionate amount of police resources, places

         11  where there are complaints coming out of, where

         12  crimes have occurred, where there are community

         13  complaints about, and they will go on the list and

         14  they will be visited during the course of a MARCH

         15  operation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What would a

         17  team consist of and how often is a MARCH operation

         18  used?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Well

         20  MARCH's are done pretty much every weekend night,

         21  every Friday and Saturday night, and some Thursday

         22  nights.  Teams very often consist of the Fire

         23  Department, the Buildings Department, the Health

         24  Department, Consumer Affairs, the Police Department

         25  and DEP.  Sometimes, I told, Consumer Affairs isn't
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          2  always there, and sometimes the SLA. The SLA has

          3  recently told us that they would like to be involved

          4  again.  They had stopped coming for quite a long

          5  time, but recently they mentioned they would like to

          6  be back involved in MARCH operations so we're

          7  hopeful.  We would like to see them there.  We think

          8  they are an important part.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well the SLA is

         10  a topic of a whole other hearing.  I'd love to go

         11  into your cooperation with the SLA but the School

         12  Bus Hearing is going on here at 1:00 p.m. and we

         13  need to be out.  I know that Bookman is coming next

         14  and so he could take about two or three hours on his

         15  own.  But I do want to hear all about that and I'll

         16  probably discuss that with you after this.

         17                 So you say every night throughout  --

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Every

         19  Friday and Saturday night.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Every Friday and

         21  Saturday night throughout the entire City.  How many

         22  would you estimate?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: No

         24  there's usually just  --  Some Friday nights there

         25  are two that go on at once and Saturday nights there
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          2  are usually one, Thursday's there will be one.  So

          3  in other words  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: For the entire

          5  city?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

          7  Right. So in other words, we are taking turns.  The

          8  issue there seems to be inspections personnel from

          9  some of the other agencies.  You know the Police

         10  Department is a large agency, but some of the other

         11  agencies apparently have more difficulty staffing

         12  these things. They don't normally work those tours

         13  and so this is how it's been set up now for a number

         14  of years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  I'm going

         16  to end up.  My last question is going to be about

         17  the crimes that you chose to be part of the Nuisance

         18  Abatement Law.  Some are clear, murder, things like

         19  that.  As I said, that's a real nuisance to be

         20  murdered at a club, but some you've got an assault

         21  on an 11 year old here as part of this, and I know

         22  we've have a fake id problem but I didn't know that

         23  was the huge problem at these locations.  I was

         24  wondering why you chose these certain crimes.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: The
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          2  crimes that were chosen were homicides and felony

          3  assaults.  There was some talk about what level was

          4  appropriate.  This bill settled on all felony

          5  assaults because felony assaults are, by their

          6  nature, serious. You are talking about serious

          7  physical injury.  You are talking about crimes that

          8  take place with weapons or crimes that result in a

          9  serious physical injury meaning a permanent

         10  disfigurement. That's a serious crime.  The law

         11  specifically excludes bar fights. Not that it's good

         12  to have bar fights in clubs, but the law says two

         13  drunks rolling around on the floor, well that's

         14  probably going to be a disorderly conduct.  That's

         15  not going to get a place violated.  The two guys are

         16  less drunk and they punch each other and draw blood.

         17    That's going to be a misdemeanor assault.  That's

         18  not going to get nuisance abated.  The same two guys

         19  who haven't learned their lesson yet, one smashes a

         20  bottle and blinds the other guy with the bottle in

         21  the bar.  That's one incident.  Now we have to wait

         22  for that to happen two more times and then we'll be

         23  able to nuisance abate under this law.  So we looked

         24  at felony assaults.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's an
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          2  important point.  I'm glad you mentioned it.  Your

          3  average assault, which you're going to see most

          4  often, is not included in this and it has to be a

          5  serious assault and it has to occur three times.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Some are two and

          8  some are three.  So the 11 year old is just I guess

          9   --  I'm a former prosecutor also.  I actually

         10  worked with Shari Heiman, whose at the end, in the

         11  Manhattan DA's office.  That's just part of the

         12  felony assault statute so that just got swept up in

         13  this.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER:

         15  Right, all felony assaults.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There's no 11

         17  year old problem that we know of.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Yeah,

         19  it didn't seem like a good drafting to start

         20  excluding because we didn't think it would usually

         21  happen.  It would be embarrassing to have some

         22  anomaly where it happened and realize that we

         23  excluded the law because we didn't think it usually

         24  happened.  It seemed like better drafting to include

         25  all felony assaults.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, as I said,

          3  I've got questions about the amount of times these

          4  sort of violent felonies occur and I'm sure you

          5  could get back to us on that.  I don't want to take

          6  up your time with that.

          7                 There are no other Council Member

          8  questions so I'm going to move on to the next panel,

          9  but I want to thank you for your very comprehensive

         10  testimony.  It eliminated a lot of questions just in

         11  your straight testimony and we look forward to

         12  working with you on both of these bills and the

         13  others that will come out of our efforts to make

         14  nightlife safer.  So we will be in contact and thank

         15  you again for all the work you've done.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MESSNER: Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next panel

         19  will consist of Robert Bookman, as I mentioned, who

         20  is Attorney for the New York Nightlife Association,

         21  David Rabin of Lotus, Paul Seres of SOL and Dan

         22  Devlin of Cro- Bar.

         23                 Gentlemen, good morning and thank you

         24  for your time here today.  If you would just please

         25  state your name.
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          2                 No, you cannot go to the bathroom.

          3  No, I'm just kidding.  He raised his hand.

          4                 The remaining gentlemen, thank you

          5  for being here. Just please say your name, give your

          6  affiliation and then your testimony, please.

          7                 MR. DEVLIN: Dan Devlin, Cro- Bar

          8  Nightclub.

          9                 MR. RABIN: David Rabin, President of

         10  the New York Nightlife Association and Lotus, and I

         11  think that Rob Bookman is going to speak first if

         12  that's okay.

         13                 MR. SERES: Paul Seres, SOL.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome back.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.  Robert

         16  Bookman, Counsel to the New York Nightlife

         17  Association.

         18                 There was a line.

         19                 You'd like us to start.  Thank you.

         20                 On behalf of the New York Nightlife

         21  Association, which is a Chapter of the New York

         22  State Restaurant Association, and of those members

         23  as well, thank you for the opportunity to appear

         24  before you to comment on these important proposals.

         25                 As to Intro 484 to expand the
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          2  Nuisance Abatement Law to include additional powers

          3  to close businesses that are in the illegal business

          4  of selling and producing fake id's, we obviously

          5  wholeheartedly support that effort on the part of

          6  the Council, and the part of Speaker Quinn, and of

          7  the Police Department, in finally recognizing that

          8  this is a significant issue in the City of New York.

          9                 Before we get to our prepared

         10  testimony, I also want to thank the Police

         11  Department, Assistant Commissioner Petito still

         12  here, particularly I want to note her and the

         13  Speaker's office and the Chairman's office here in

         14  putting us together with the Police Department.

         15  We've had our first meeting.  It is now going to be

         16  on- going.  It was very positive.  As we say in the

         17  diplomatic circles, it was a full exchange of views

         18  and we thought it was very helpful and hopeful that

         19  we are now hearing and seeing a more cooperative

         20  attitude at the highest levels of the Police

         21  Department with our industry.  Unfortunately, we

         22  don't think that message has necessarily transferred

         23  yet to the Civil Enforcement Unit which handles

         24  nuisance abatement and that's what we're here to

         25  speak about today.
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          2                 As to the specifics of Intro 515, I

          3  just want to make a couple of issues concerning that

          4  one of which was raised by Assembly Member Garodnick

          5  and then get into the more general concerns that we

          6  have about expanding the Nuisance Abatement Law at

          7  this time when we believe the existing powers under

          8  the Nuisance Abatement Law are being misused and

          9  abused.

         10                 As to the couple of specifics

         11  concerning Intro 515, the first is the trigger

         12  mechanism for bringing a nuisance abatement action,

         13  as was pointed out, is based on two or three

         14  violations which is left undefined.  We believe it

         15  should read convictions and we are surprised at the

         16  testimony of the Police Department by saying that

         17  the Nuisance Abatement Law never uses convictions

         18  and eloquently stated why, when the opposite is, in

         19  fact, the case.  If you look at the Nuisance

         20  Abatement Law section 7- 703, sub- sections a, b, c,

         21  d, all of them require at least two convictions

         22  within a year prior to the nuisance abatement action

         23  proceeding.  So I don't understand all the reasons

         24  why it was claimed that convictions are not

         25  appropriate when it's quite the opposite.
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          2                 Previously, this body, when adopting

          3  other sections of this law recognize that the only

          4  way to insure fairness and due process was to

          5  require convictions prior to starting a nuisance

          6  abatement action, thereby establishing the necessary

          7  predicate that the establishment is the scene of

          8  criminal activity.  To keep it as violations simply

          9  means, in the real world, that a summons may of have

         10  been issued, little more.

         11                 Furthermore, that summons may have

         12  been dismissed, or may still be pending.  Therefore,

         13  nothing has been established about a location prior

         14  to bringing the action.

         15                 Moreover, if criminal charges are

         16  pending against an individual, in an assault case

         17  for example, two customers spontaneously break out

         18  into a fight.  One hits the other over the head with

         19  a bottle.  Our security comes in, stops it, calls

         20  the Police and then the nuisance abatement action is

         21  brought as a result of that, the civil nuisance

         22  abatement action.  We are stuck in the position,

         23  Council Members, of not being able to defend

         24  ourselves in that civil enforcement unit because

         25  there will be no witnesses that will be prepared to
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          2  testify when there are criminal charges pending

          3  against them.  Their lawyers are not going to allow

          4  them to testify.  You can subpoena them from today

          5  to tomorrow in a civil action.  In the real world,

          6  and of course not to argue against our entire legal

          7  system, which of course is based on convictions, but

          8  just because someone is arrested for a crime, I know

          9  this is often hard to believe in this day and age,

         10  doesn't mean a crime, in fact, occurred.  It

         11  certainly doesn't mean a crime, in fact, occurred at

         12  our premises.  So an individual who goes to the

         13  Police Department and says last night I was knocked

         14  over the head, or at a hospital is interviewed by a

         15  Police Officer and said I was knocked over the head

         16  with a bottle at the Bookman Club and this is the

         17  guy who did it.  The criminal process when it plays

         18  out sometimes determines that it didn't take place

         19  in our premises.  Maybe it took place across the

         20  street, maybe it took place on the sidewalk, maybe

         21  it didn't take place there at all and they're

         22  looking for a good civil action for damages against

         23  an establishment.  I hate to harp on minor things

         24  like the Constitution and due process, but I hate to

         25  see a business being abated and closed, a lawful,
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          2  licensed business under the nuisance abatement

          3  action based on allegations which later turn out to

          4  be unproven or unestablished, but it's too late for

          5  the business.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me interrupt

          7  you only because you are going to move on to other

          8  points and I just want to hit this one for a second.

          9    You obviously make some very valid points.  Your

         10  last one was the best about an allegation maybe

         11  occurring the next day or something like that, but

         12  so did the Police, and you were here and you're an

         13  attorney.  So I want to hear you rebut what they had

         14  to say.

         15                 Clearly, if there's a place that is a

         16  serious problem, that needs to be shut down

         17  immediately, if you are going to wait for

         18  convictions of these crimes that are necessary you

         19  could wait as much as a year and a half for a

         20  criminal trial situation to play out.  Many times,

         21  as they said, an arrest for a felony assault will be

         22  plead down to something that's not a felony, doesn't

         23  fall under this, doesn't mean your club is any less

         24  liable, but it means that person might be a first

         25  arrest or maybe was defending themselves or
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          2  something along those lines.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Or maybe they just

          4  overcharged the default section 120.05 knowing full

          5  well that later on it was not going to be convicted

          6  or plead to that possibly.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Possibly.

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: But then we're being

          9  closed down for a section of the Penal Law that is

         10  not in the Nuisance Abatement Law.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Correct.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: I'm still stuck on the

         13  fact that a crime actually is based ultimately on a

         14  conviction for something otherwise it's just an

         15  accusation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: No.  Again,

         17  there's two different things here.  The fact that it

         18  happened at your club is one thing whether or not a

         19  crime  --

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Maybe happened.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Maybe. Okay, if

         22  we want to go into the amount of statistics

         23  regarding crimes which are alleged to have occurred

         24  in your club that actually didn't, you could let me

         25  know, but I doubt that's a huge problem.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: Oh, it is.

          3                 CHAIRMAN VALLONE: And the fact that

          4  they didn't occur there is  --

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: Actually, under the

          6  Nuisance Abatement Law, there is a significant

          7  problem that included in these affidavits and these

          8  substantial papers are incidents which occur

          9  outside, sometimes across the street, sometimes down

         10  the block, and it is thrown in the middle of

         11  affidavits of things which took place inside to try

         12  to beef up the papers.  It's actually a very

         13  significant problem.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well that's

         15  something that's interesting to note.  So are these

         16  being used as predicates or are they being used, as

         17  you said, thrown into beef  --  I don't think I have

         18  a problem with them mentioning problems outside the

         19  club, if they're trying to discuss the atmosphere of

         20  the club, but not using those incidents to close the

         21  club down.

         22                 MR. BOOKMAN: Look, we understand that

         23  the particular sections that are being cited here,

         24  with the exception of the first felony assault

         25  section 120.05, which we don't think really belongs
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          2  in here with all the other serious ones.  It is the

          3  least serious felony assault section.  My research

          4  has indicated that is regularly used in court cases

          5  on bar fights, the instrumentality is many times

          6  nothing more in one case that a vehicle doored (sic)

          7  somebody, you know smashed somebody with.  It's

          8  always a bottle, so we're not talking about guns and

          9  knives.  So assuming that one section is taken out

         10  because, again, it rarely winds up in that felony

         11  section even though it might be accused.  We realize

         12  this proposal is not a perfect vessel for us to be

         13  raising the issues that we would like for you to

         14  hear today, but it is what it is. This is the first

         15  major hearing on the expansion of nuisance abatement

         16  laws and the statistics that we heard today

         17  establish a startling, dramatic increase over the

         18  last three years in the amount of times the Nuisance

         19  Abatement Law is being used in Manhattan against

         20  licensed, lawful, taxpaying businesses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As I said

         22  though, I said the same thing to the Police, I want

         23  them to respond to what you're saying and I want you

         24  to respond to what they said.  That's why I am going

         25  to interrupt you  --
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: I heard what he said

          3  about terrible public policy.  To me, terrible

          4  public policy is closing a lawful, licensed,

          5  taxpaying business for a crime that may never have

          6  happened on the premises and we won't know that

          7  until later on. That's the nature of the court

          8  system.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let's make that

         10  clear.  These laws, the Nuisance Abatement Laws as

         11  they presently exist, and as they are intended to be

         12  improved, do not apply to incidents that occur

         13  outside your club.  Correct?  There not supposed to

         14  apply.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, I think they're

         16  not supposed to. I think that's a good question to

         17  ask the NYPD because they generally include

         18  incidents outside the clubs in their court papers,

         19  regularly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This is why  --

         21  I mean it's my fault.  That's why I wanted to ask

         22  them when they were on the stand.  I will ask them.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is not your fault

         24  because what we're asking for here today, at the end

         25  of the day, is an oversight hearing on the Nuisance
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          2  Abatement Law, especially against our industry,

          3  obviously it's appropriate to use it against chop

          4  shops, and 80 percent of the cases that it's used

          5  against nobody has any complaints with.  These are

          6  either illegal businesses per say or they're fronts

          7  for illegal businesses.  With the percentage of

          8  cases that statistics were cited where the Nuisance

          9  Abatement Law is being used against licensed, lawful

         10  business, we think there needs to be some oversight.

         11    And we think there certainly should be some

         12  oversight so all these questions could come out so

         13  people know that's what the hearing is about and

         14  more victims of the Nuisance Abatement Law process

         15  will come forward.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's possible

         17  that happens, but you're saying here today that

         18  incidents that occur outside your clubs are being

         19  used under the Nuisance Abatement Law.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes, we have examples

         21  here in the cases that are sitting here today.  In

         22  this case, one of the examples in the affidavits was

         23  that an undercover police officer observed an

         24  individual across the street from the club smoking a

         25  joint, and that was included in the papers for  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Was there any

          3  allegation that the individual had bought inside the

          4  club?

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: None.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I would like to

          7  take a look at those.  Not today but I would like to

          8  take a look.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: There was another

         10  affidavit in that same case where an undercover cop

         11  stated that he called a drug dealer, that he knew to

         12  be a drug dealer, no allegation that he had ever met

         13  the drug dealer at this establishment before or had

         14  ever seen him there before, and told him to meet him

         15  at this location and bring some marijuana with him

         16  because he wanted to buy it and they did and that

         17  was held against us.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's in an

         19  affidavit?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: That's in an affidavit.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, continue.

         22                 MR. BOOKMAN: There were so many  --

         23  So when you add these two sections together with the

         24  lack of convictions being violations and this 120.05

         25  Penal Law section, I think you have a situation
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          2  that, as I explained, it may too late for the

          3  business owner because the nuisance abatement case

          4  is already over.  As you heard, for our industry,

          5  the licensed, lawful businesses almost everyone of

          6  them is resolved by stipulation subsequent to the

          7  initial nuisance abatement action.  So in the real

          8  world we are faced with having been closed for a

          9  weekend which you'll hear, the opportunity to work

         10  out a stipulation and reopen.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When you say

         12  your industry just explain that for people who might

         13  not know.

         14                 MR. BOOKMAN: The Nightlife

         15  Association represents New York's best bars, clubs

         16  and lounges and bars.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Actually, I

         18  should know this. How many people do you represent

         19  or clubs do you represent?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: In the last economic

         21  impact study we indicated, which uses statistical

         22  data like licensing laws, and Time Out magazine, and

         23  the Zagat Nightlife guides, we located approximately

         24  1,100 to 1,200 establishments throughout the City of

         25  New York that would constitute the nightlife
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          2  industry.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But how many are

          4  a part of your organization that you speak for?

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: A few hundred.

          6  Obviously, that's only 1,100, 1,200 of 10,000 on-

          7  premises liquor licenses, but I don't think they use

          8  the Nuisance Abatement Law against five- star

          9  restaurants although they use the MARCH taskforce.

         10  That's what we're talking about, our portion of this

         11  important industry. You're faced with you could

         12  challenge  --  I mean you're a lawyer, Councilman

         13  Garodnick is a lawyer.  There are other lawyers

         14  here.  You know what we are faced with in the real

         15  world. Councilwoman Foster is a lawyer.  Councilman

         16  Oddo is a lawyer.  We all lawyers then okay.  Your

         17  faced with sign this stipulation which you'll hear

         18  from people basically asking you to do 90 percent of

         19  what you're already doing, if you're a responsible

         20  club, or you can get a trial, and a trial, as you

         21  know, may take a few days and you could challenge

         22  all of these sworn to affidavits.  The judge will

         23  tell you, I can give you half a day this week.  I

         24  can give you half a day next week.  A judge just

         25  because he signed a TRO on Friday is not sitting
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          2  there waiting to hold a trial starting Wednesday.

          3  So you could have a trial that will take place over

          4  a month, maybe you'll be open or maybe you'll remain

          5  closed during that month and maybe at the end of the

          6  day you wind up with the same stipulation and save a

          7  fortune in legal fees by signing it today.  So in

          8  the real world against our types of businesses, not

          9  the illegal places that the 80 percent of the

         10  Nuisance Abatement Law is being used against, it is

         11  a weapon that is being used for punitive rather than

         12  corrective action because if in three days 98

         13  percent of the time, we could work out a stipulation

         14  that's satisfactory to all parties, then there was

         15  no reason to close us in the first place.  Then

         16  those businesses should have been approached by the

         17  Police Department and said we have reason to believe

         18  the following is occurring in your place.  We don't

         19  think you're doing a good enough job.  This is the

         20  steps we want you to take to do a better job and if

         21  you do it and sign a stipulation saying that you do

         22  it, we're okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How is this

         24  Working Group that we established here working with

         25  the Administration for your benefit?  How's that
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          2  working out?

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well we had one meeting

          4  and, obviously, this was a prime issue that we

          5  raised.  In many ways we frankly felt that the

          6  timing of this hearing was a little unfortunate

          7  because we are working with them now and we don't

          8  want to appear to be in a confrontation with the

          9  Police Department at this stage and time, but you

         10  scheduled the hearing.  We had no choice.  We cannot

         11  allow, given the dramatic increase in the number of

         12  nuisance abatement actions against our industry from

         13  30 in 2005, to 57 in 2006, to on target for over 80

         14  this year to go unanswered without you hearing

         15  what's really going on out there.  You need to hear

         16  what's really going on out there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me, again,

         18  have you respond to something they said.  You've

         19  accused the Police Department of being punitive and

         20  they spent a good deal of time testifying as to why

         21  they choose certain locations.  I happen to know

         22  Dave Rabin. I know that his  --  I don't have

         23  anything good or bad to say about anybody else.  I

         24  don't know you personally.  I've known David.  I

         25  know that he tries very hard to comply, but why do
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          2  you believe they would be being punitive as opposed

          3  to working with you if they could?

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: I understand.  That's

          5  the crux of the issue as it relates to us and that's

          6  why I think there needs to be more research here to

          7  why they are going after some of these places and

          8  why they are choosing the Nuisance Abatement Law to

          9  go after some of theses places.

         10                 One of the things that they said in

         11  answer to your question was a closing order, an

         12  ex-parte temporary restraining order, which is

         13  served on us exclusively on a Friday night, which

         14  you asked extensively of, and, by the way, there

         15  isn't one of these places that doesn't have a seven

         16  day a week functioning office with people there in

         17  positions of authority who can accept service of

         18  process.  If it takes three days, as it does

         19  virtually in everyone of our cases, to hammer out a

         20  stipulation they could certainly serve us on a

         21  Monday or a Tuesday with a Friday return date and if

         22  it's not hammered out by Friday, then we would go to

         23  court and take our chances about whether we'll be

         24  closed for the weekend.  So it's beyond disingenuous

         25  for them to argue what they did and so I would say
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          2  that question needs to be asked to them.

          3                 They also said that these TRO's are

          4  only used with an immediate closing order when the

          5  public safety or health is eminently at risk.  My

          6  notes to that was I wish that were true and I know

          7  it's not true because when you look at some of the

          8  cases here you will see that the most recent

          9  incident in some of the papers were months before

         10  they went to court to get the TRO.  So if it's so

         11  eminent why is it that when the Roxy was closed on

         12  the eve of the Halloween weekend, which was October

         13  28th, 2005, the most recent incident in the papers

         14  was July, '05 and the oldest one was February '04.

         15  How eminent is it that it took them months to get

         16  around to asking for a TRO, and there's a number of

         17  cases like that.  I have another one which is a

         18  small bar, in the Irving Place area, where the

         19  entire case was based on three, and this is in

         20  answer to your question, a small bar, sales to

         21  minors to their police cadet.  Each time a summons

         22  was issued the owner of this premises begged the

         23  police officers to check the id's of everybody else,

         24  all big 20, 25 people in the establishment, to see

         25  if anybody there other than the police officer was,
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          2  in fact, underage.  Each time they refused.  It took

          3  them two months to go to court on this eminent

          4  safety hazard that two months ago an undercover

          5  cadet purchased a lite beer.  What they also forgot

          6  to mention in the papers, that each of the summonses

          7  were dismissed prior to them going to court.  Now I

          8  can see they were not dismissed for substantive

          9  reasons, but if it's such an eminent safety hazard,

         10  if it's such a scary place for the public that it

         11  needs to be closed then how come the cops aren't

         12  even showing up in court to prosecute the very

         13  summonses that they issued.  That's how serious it

         14  is.  So the answer to your question is these places

         15  are targeted by 311 complaints, by community

         16  complaints for a variety of reasons having nothing

         17  to do with criminal activity.  What's happened is

         18  these are quality of life complaints that are

         19  screwing up their Comstat numbers.  I've got to say

         20  again, a lot of this, this Council has

         21  responsibility for because three years ago you put

         22  tens of thousands of people out on the streets, late

         23  at night, four o'clock in the morning to smoke.  We

         24  warned you at the time, it's going to create the

         25  massive increase in the number of complaints with

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  nearby residences, not that we would go out of

          3  business, and it has. There's an unholy progression

          4  from people on the street to 311 complaints, to the

          5  police having to show up, to having to issue

          6  something, a summons that they don't even bother

          7  going to criminal court for, but now they have

          8  Comstat statistics.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I do want to try

         10  to limit you to this bill.

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: And that's how we

         12  believe they're picking these places.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's not that

         14  those may not be legitimate concerns, but we've had

         15  other hearings and summits and we will meet with you

         16  constantly about those, but as it relates to the

         17  Nuisance Abatement Laws.  I do want to get to your

         18  colleagues and I do want to get to my colleagues

         19  questions.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: And I'll finish up.  It

         21  used to be that when this Council's predecessors

         22  passed the original Nuisance Abatement Law requiring

         23  convictions the process was we have a place where

         24  there's prostitution or obscenity or other criminal

         25  activity that we've convicted the place of.  Now we
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          2  need a new tool to go after the establishment itself

          3  and the owner itself.  Now what we have is the tail

          4  wagging the dog.  Now we have a place being targeted

          5  for non- criminal activity and saying now let's go

          6  send out the troops and see what criminal activity

          7  we can find so we can justify a nuisance abatement

          8  action against an otherwise lawfully licensed place,

          9  and that's what happening.  And that's wrong. Before

         10  we give them anymore power, we can to see how

         11  they're abusing the current power.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So as it

         13  pertains to this law, and I don't want to open the

         14  door for another speech, but I just to see if I'm

         15  right.  As it pertains to this law, you're not

         16  against the idea of the law itself, including

         17  murders and other serious crimes under the nuisance

         18  law.  You would like to remove the felony assault

         19  section that you mentioned.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Just that one section.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And you would

         22  like to make it a conviction and not an incident.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  I've got

         25  other questions, but obviously I'll to Council
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          2  Member Monserrate now who has joined as well as --

          3  that's about it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair,

          5  a very important hearing on very important matters

          6  as they relate to the City and public safety.  I,

          7  again, I just have to reiterate, I think a lot of

          8  this would be meliorated if we had paid details

          9  working in locations and that the Police Department

         10  and the Police Commissioner, who I have a

         11  considerable degree of respect for, would move

         12  forward on that.  I think that would really

         13  meliorate many of these issues.

         14                 I do want to ask and I would have

         15  liked to have asked this for the Police Department

         16  earlier.  I have concerns and I think that in you

         17  testimony the representative for the Nightlife

         18  Association spoke to the difference between

         19  violation and conviction.  In a society like ours

         20  where we believe due process is important, I think

         21  it's important to have on the record that there was

         22  an actual conviction for an offense and not just a

         23  mere violation.  I guess my concern about this to

         24  two- fold.  One is, obviously, that the way the bill

         25  is currently written doesn't provide for due process
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          2  and everyone, including the nightclub owners and bar

          3  owners, deserves due process in our society.

          4  Perhaps, just diverging a little bit from the bill,

          5  I wanted to know when the Nightclub Taskforce units

          6  or the Police Department units come into your

          7  establishment, how do they usually come in because

          8  I've heard a lot of complaints about being 10, 15

          9  and 20 police officers.  I've actually heard

         10  considerable testimony on this so can you give me

         11  some of your experience?

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: I'm going to leave that

         13  to some of the people who actually have experienced

         14  it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Just if

         16  you can give me one or two minutes because I know

         17  that I've had many complaints in my own district and

         18  even outside of my district.

         19                 MR. SERES: As recent as this weekend,

         20  we  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Just identify

         22  yourself for the record.

         23                 MR. SERES: I'm sorry.  Paul Seres for

         24  Sol.  As recent as this weekend  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: From Sol?

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 MR. SERES: From Sol, Club Sol on 29th

          3  Street.  We had roughly 12 uniformed police officers

          4  come in to do random inspections.  I believe, aside

          5  from regular police officers, we had a sergeant, a

          6  lieutenant, and a captain who I believe is and XO in

          7  the 10th Precinct.  They come in, they go right

          8  behind the bars, they're searching for Health Code

          9  violations such as fruit flies or whatever, but they

         10  are coming into a busy club.  It's about 12:30, 1:00

         11  at night when you've got patrons now looking all

         12  over the place thinking well what's going on, what's

         13  going on, what's going on.  So, obviously, there's

         14  some sort of ulterior motive in terms of disrupting

         15  the service and there's an intimidation factor as

         16  well.  So that's just one instance that happened as

         17  recent as this weekend.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         19                 MR. RABIN: Councilman, thank you.

         20  David Rabin from Lotus.  Most of my comments are

         21  about the Nuisance Abatement Law, but when

         22  Councilman Vallone asked that question before about

         23  MARCH, I immediately started scribbling notes

         24  because it's probably the number one topic amongst

         25  our colleagues in this business.  Our permits are
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          2  the same at 2:00 p.m. as they are at 11:00 p.m. at

          3  night.  None of us, I don't' think, would object to

          4  the police sending in two or three officers for

          5  whatever to check that we're not overcrowded at one

          6  in the morning and we're not endangering people's

          7  lives by being overcrowded or to check that we're

          8  not serving underage people, but what they do is

          9  they send in ten to 18 people, in some cases as many

         10  as 18 people, at prime time.  Some of the venues

         11  only hold 60 people so one- third of the people in

         12  the venue now are uniformed officers, flashlights by

         13  their eyes, four cops cars outside with lights

         14  going, and the only purpose could possibly to

         15  intimidate the owner and to intimidate the

         16  customers. I would like to know what public value

         17  there is in sending the taskforce, or the MARCH

         18  taskforce, into Balthazar, which they did in

         19  November, leaving the GM crying.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: For the nerds,

         21  like me, that is what?

         22                 MR. RABIN: Balthazar.  Sorry, Peter.

         23  You guys should go there.  Balthazar is a french

         24  bistro on Spring Street that seats about 200, owned

         25  by Keith McNally, one of the most respected

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  restaurateurs in the country, not a club, nothing.

          3  Great restaurant, great place.  People from all over

          4  the world, when they come to New York, one of the

          5  things on their agenda is let's go to Balthazar.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: And somehow I don't

          7  think the taskforce went there because the Buildings

          8  Department Inspector is too afraid to go to

          9  Balthazar during normal business hours that we were

         10  led to believe the purpose of the taskforce was

         11  earlier.  Please, that doesn't pass the laugh test.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         13    I just want to say for the record, Mr. Chair, that

         14  I have heard a series of complaints.  I've actually

         15  witnessed one or two incidents in Queens actually,

         16  where I saw that.  I actually spoke to the

         17  supervising police officer on the scene.  I

         18  identified myself obviously.  I think it's a concern

         19  because really I don't see how it could be that we

         20  can justify, with plenty of crime still out there,

         21  how they would be able to send ten, 15, up to 20

         22  police officers into one establishment.  I think it

         23  really puts a dent on these folks business and I

         24  think it creates an atmosphere that's not good.

         25                 The last question I had, have you
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          2  heard any concerns about the police officers are

          3  just arbitrarily asking patrons for identification?

          4  Just that the police officers, when they went in,

          5  they just started asking people for id.  Did you see

          6  that at all? You have had no experiences with that.

          7                 MR. RABIN: No, as a matter of fact,

          8  if there was normal policing and they in their

          9  expertise observed individuals who appear to be

         10  under 21 consuming alcohol, we would welcome them as

         11  police officers, seeing their id's and not just

         12  stopping the investigation by saying let me see your

         13  id and the person saying I'm under 21.  I don't have

         14  an id.  They just let me in.  Of course, the person

         15  is going to say that if the way they got in was with

         16  a fake id.  So we welcome the police to ask people,

         17  at that point, to say take out your wallet, let me

         18  see the id that you have.  Let's see the what id you

         19  were carrying.  Unfortunately, that doesn't happen.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         21  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Thank you, gentlemen.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We discussed

         23  fake id's.  Let's talk about that a second.  What is

         24  your experience regarding fake id's at your club?  I

         25  know that, I believe Lotus already has scanners.
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          2                 MR. RABIN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So you're

          4  experience regarding fake id's and how the police

          5   --  I don't know what you have there, Mr. Bookman.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: Something on the topic

          7  that I'd like you to see, but I don't want to

          8  approach you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sergeant, can

         10  you  --  And how do the police work with you, or

         11  don't work with you, when it comes to fake id's at

         12  your clubs?

         13                 MR. DEVLIN: My name is Dan Devlin

         14  from Cro- Bar, as I said earlier.  This book

         15  represents about two to three months worth of bad

         16  id's that we confiscated at our front door which I

         17  was glad to see in this amendment the shutting of

         18  those places that issue these phony id's because

         19  this is a very big problem.

         20                 We have id scanners at all entrance

         21  points to the club.  We have six scanners so that we

         22  have back- up.  Every person that comes in that has

         23  an id, has the id scanned.  If it's a passport, we

         24  take a photograph.  That book represents just a

         25  small piece of what I could have brought today had I
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          2  not broken my arm playing football with my kids on

          3  Superbowl Sunday.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're not as

          5  young as you used to be so know that off.

          6                 MR. DEVLIN: That's just what my boss

          7  told me.

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: They also have another

          9  book, of equal size, just from the last couple of

         10  months, which literally you couldn't bring it all,

         11  of real id's that their security guards noticed that

         12  the person carrying that real id was not the person

         13  attempting to get in.  They confiscated those, made

         14  photographs of them, and they mailed to them the

         15  home address that was on the real id's, yet this is

         16  an establishment, despite all of this, that was

         17  recently, in January of this year, the subject of a

         18  nuisance abatement action.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Interesting

         20  point.  So when you confiscate these id's at the

         21  door, what happens in relation to  -- How do you

         22  work with the police when it comes to fake id's?

         23                 MR. DEVLIN: Usually there are police

         24  officers within ten to 15 feet of where we are

         25  id'ing (sic) people and we will show the police we

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  got another one, and probably about one every 20 to

          3  30 times, the police actually take a person and

          4  issue them a summons for what they've done.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's good to

          6  know they are actually do that now.  Are they doing

          7  that more than they were in the past?

          8                 MR. DEVLIN: Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I just took a

         10  look at these and it's amazing how realistic these

         11  id's are.  For the people with scanners, do some of

         12  these id's get past your scanners?

         13                 MR. DEVLIN: Yes, they do, some of the

         14  better ones. We've been told by the kids presenting

         15  them, they're the good ones that cost $200 dollars

         16  plus, $500 dollars.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do the kids tell

         18  you where they get them?

         19                 MR. DEVLIN: Some of the places

         20  mentioned earlier were those places.

         21                 MR. RABIN: Council Member, I would

         22  just like to add one thing on the subject.  We

         23  actually use two id scanners at both of our

         24  entrances as well.  We confiscate all of our id's as

         25  well. In answer to your question on how do the
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          2  police react to us confiscating id's, generally

          3  speaking  --  We are on 29th Street between 11th and

          4  12th, which in West Chelsea is kind of off the

          5  beaten path of 27th, 28th Street.  Generally

          6  speaking, we get assigned two beat, uniformed

          7  officers to our block.  More times, I'd say nine

          8  times out of ten  --  They're not from the 10th

          9  Precinct, they're from other details or other

         10  precincts that they pull in to help support the 10th

         11  when we're open over the weekend.

         12  I would say 98 percent of the time, these police

         13  officers don't want to hear about these fake id's

         14  and they don't want to do the violations, or the

         15  paperwork, or the ticket, or the arrest of these

         16  individuals.  They would rather just hang out, do

         17  their detail and then go on about their day.  So,

         18  we've offered  --  One of my floor managers is

         19  actually a retired lieutenant and so he's out there

         20  liaising.  We've offered our assistance on this

         21  matter more times than we care to and they just say

         22  you know what, just keep the id's and let it go.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, not that

         24  this is an excuse, but I believe what they would say

         25  is that if they made every arrest, they wouldn't
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          2  have any police in the street if they had to make an

          3  arrest for fake id, then have that police officer

          4  then leave that detail and bring them downtown.  Do

          5  you have a way that's something that would work,

          6  despite that concern?

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: My answer to that is if

          8  they maybe devoted the same amount of police

          9  attention that they do to the MARCH taskforce to

         10  find a fruit fly, or the amount of police undercover

         11  that they have in some of these large clubs to see

         12  if they can buy a joint from another patron, to fake

         13  id's in New York --  If they put that much work

         14  police work into fake id's, I don't think we would

         15  have to worry about fake id's stores in the City of

         16  New York.

         17                 MR. RABIN: One thing I do want to add

         18  about this idea of fake id's is that a lot of times,

         19  kids are going online to the Department of Motor

         20  Vehicles, they're grabbing somebody's Social

         21  Security number or birth certificate and claiming

         22  it's a lost license and getting it re- issued.  We

         23  try to weed those out as best as possible.  An id

         24  scanner, if it's an actual id, if it's a patrons

         25  older sibling and they look similar or whatever,
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          2  it's still going to go through if it's still a valid

          3  id because it's just checking for age verification

          4  and the validity of the id.

          5                 In answer to your question just prior

          6  to that in terms of what do you think we should do

          7  or what we suggest we do so that we do keep police

          8  officers on the street doing the real serious crimes

          9  is that work with us.  We are an organization, we're

         10  a group of people, or specifically in my instance,

         11  I've tried to get several meetings with my police

         12  precinct and they don't want to have it.  It's

         13  always an us against them attitude and we're in this

         14  community, we're in this City, we're here to make

         15  New York City back and great and all those wonderful

         16  things, but if feels like it's a constant up hill

         17  struggle, all the time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well I couldn't

         19  agree more with the fact that the communication

         20  needs to be improved and that's why Speaker Quinn

         21  had the conference.  I think it was a big help.  It

         22  was probably the first time many of you go to sit

         23  down in the room with some of those higher ranking

         24  law enforcement officials and actually bring up the

         25  same concerns you're doing today, and, as you know,
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          2  we're still working to improve communication.  We've

          3  got that taskforce set up.  We wanted more, but we

          4  are working with the Administration on that and it

          5  seems like many of these problems could be solved if

          6  you just sat down in a room and worked together,

          7  some couldn't, but most can.

          8                 Let me just see if there are any

          9  other questions before  --  I did sort of cut you

         10  guys off before we let your statements go on so if

         11  have anything else that you want to say just feel

         12  free.

         13                 MR. RABIN: I'll try to edit down

         14  because we've covered some of the ground, but I do

         15  want to thank you for letting us testify on this

         16  issue and I really do want to thank you for

         17  attacking the fake id issue because we're sort of at

         18  a loss.  I mean we're doing everything we can, at

         19  least most of us are.

         20                 Rob addressed the issue of the

         21  constitutionality of this proposal as it sits before

         22  you.  I think we find that it's arguable that it's

         23  unconstitutional in terms of violation versus

         24  conviction.  I have a million problems with the way

         25  Civil Enforcement Unit interacts with nightlife.  I
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          2  am gratified that we are finally working with NYPD

          3  via your efforts and the Speaker's efforts, but this

          4  hearing did come up when it came up and we had no

          5  choice but to address this issue.

          6                 I think that the way the Nuisance

          7  Abatement Law is currently used, let alone expanded,

          8  is not only abusive and punitive, it literally

          9  borders on sadistic.  They get orders mid week, but

         10  they deliberately wait until Friday night to deal

         11  the most crippling economic blow possible.

         12                 If you ask around the rank and file,

         13  or if you ask around other people in the nightclub

         14  world, I think you'll find that Lotus is generally

         15  regarded as one of the cleanest operations in New

         16  York and I believe that these guys are trying to do

         17  the exact same thing, but Lotus is still reeling,

         18  one and a half years later, we are still literally

         19  financially reeling from the three day closing that

         20  we suffered under nuisance abatement.  The court

         21  order was issued on a Wednesday, but it wasn't given

         22  to us until the Friday night of Memorial Day

         23  weekend.  We are open six days a week and since the

         24  Civil Enforcement Unit testified that they work so

         25  closely with the precincts to decide who to go after
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          2  you would think that they would know that we are

          3  open six days a week since I bet you the 10th

          4  Precinct knows we're open six days a week.  Yet they

          5  waited until the Friday night of Memorial Day

          6  weekend when it was at 11 p.m. Virtually impossible

          7  for us to reach lawyers or anybody, costs us three

          8  days of income.

          9                 What people need to understand, first

         10  of all, is that nightclubs are not these cash cows

         11  that people are printing money and making money hand

         12  over fist, but it's not just the owners that suffer,

         13  it's the bar- backs, it's the busboys, it's the

         14  bathroom attendants, it's the security guards.  None

         15  of them get paid for three days and those people

         16  often live week to week and they don't get paid for

         17  three days because we don't make any money and they

         18  generally work on tips.

         19                 Our closing order was full of lies,

         20  as Mr. Bookman alleged a few minutes ago.  We had no

         21  drug sales at Lotus.  We had no violence on our

         22  premises.  The second judge, and I've given you the

         23  comments from the second judge with the highlights,

         24  who ordered us to be immediately re- opened on that

         25  Tuesday, noted her outrage at the way the police had
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          2  added charges in there about violent incidents that

          3  had occurred in an hotel, or in a car, having

          4  nothing to do with Lotus.  Perhaps the person did

          5  meet them at Lotus, perhaps not, but they didn't

          6  happen at our place.

          7                 The Civil Enforcement Unit, in my

          8  opinion, deliberately misled the court because the

          9  hearing is ex-parte so they could get to crush us

         10  economically even if we get re-opened. I don't know

         11  why it has to be ex-parte.  If they have such a rock

         12  solid case, why are they so afraid to have us there

         13  and have a discussion in front of a judge, and why

         14  can't both sides be represented by the judge.

         15                 We, as Paul just noted, we want to

         16  work with NYPD. We keep saying the same thing over

         17  and over.  Tell us you've got a problem with our

         18  place, tell us how you want to work with us to

         19  alleviate the problem, and we'll work with you.

         20  Don't treat us like us this constant gotcha (sic)

         21  situation that we're in.

         22                 The only reason Lotus agreed to the

         23  stipulation and didn't fight the City, as Rob said,

         24  is because it was explained to us by our attorneys

         25  that we might very well win a victory and end up
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          2  bankrupt by the time we won the case, so we agreed

          3  to a stipulation.  But I will tell you had I known

          4  in advance how devastating the stipulation would be

          5  on our business, we wouldn't have signed it.  We

          6  would have fought it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What was

          8  devastating about the stipulation?

          9                 MR. RABIN: Well, cost of monitors,

         10  the fact that for months and months and months, we

         11  weren't allowed to let anyone in, including your

         12  mother, who didn't have id.  So if two 70 year old

         13  people walked up to Lotus and happened to want to

         14  come into Lotus, we weren't allowed to let them in.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Maybe we should

         16  clarify that my mom wasn't actually just carousing

         17  around.

         18                 MR. RABIN: No, she wasn't carousing.

         19  It was a function.  But that was the order of the

         20  stipulation.  We were not allowed to let in anyone

         21  who did not show us id.  So what would happen, in

         22  the real world, is that groups of six, seven, eight

         23  people would show up, seven of them would have id,

         24  one wouldn't, we'd say we're sorry, we can let in

         25  seven of you, but we can't let in the eighth, even
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          2  if that person was clearly 40 or 50 years old and

          3  the group, of course, would move on.  They would go

          4  somewhere else because they are not going to leave

          5  their one friend in the street.  Word got out all

          6  over the City that Lotus had this problem with id

          7  that no one else had, so people just started going

          8  to other places where they didn't have to worry

          9  about this issue and they stopped coming to Lotus

         10  and we're still reeling from it to this day.

         11                 And what I really don't understand is

         12  why nightlife is continually treated differently

         13  than Madison Square Garden or Yankee Stadium.  They

         14  have liquor licenses.  They make huge amounts of

         15  money from alcohol sales.  They have fights.  No one

         16  in this room could say there aren't fights in the

         17  bleachers or fights in the blue seats.  They have

         18  drug sales at concerts.  They have underage drinking

         19  issues and yet the Civil Enforcement Unit never goes

         20  after Dolan or Steinbrenner or anyone else and gives

         21  them the same violation, they give us.  In fact,

         22  NYPD has told us that they do arrest drug users at

         23  concerts when there's a hugh concert at the Garden

         24  or the Beacon and people are smoking pot and they

         25  get arrested, but the owners don't get summons or
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          2  violated for that. How can that be?  It's the same

          3  exact liquor license.

          4                 I just, overall  --  I going to wind

          5  up.  I'm sorry for taking so long, but I just don't

          6  think the Civil Enforcement Unit has gotten the New

          7  York City memo.  I keep reading about how they want

          8  to expand the Javits Center and bring more tourists

          9  to New York.  I keep reading about this fellow

         10  George Fertitta whose been appointed to be the head

         11  of the new New York City Tourism Bureau and he's

         12  establishing six offices around the world to

         13  increase tourism to New York and yet the Civil

         14  Enforcement Unit seems to want to close all

         15  nightlife establishments in New York so when all

         16  these tourists show up here for conventions or for

         17  their summer holiday and there's nowhere to go at

         18  night, they might as well go to Cleveland at this

         19  point, if this keeps up.  I just think that somehow

         20  someone has to say that the situation has gotten out

         21  of hand before we expand their power.  Thank you.

         22                 MR. DEVLIN: Again, my name is Dan

         23  Devlin, General Manager, Cro- Bar Nightclub.  Again,

         24  I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak

         25  today.  I wanted to tell you a little bit about my
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          2  experience with a nuisance abatement.  At 9:30 p.m.

          3  on Friday, January 5th of this year, I was shocked

          4  to see upwards of 24 to 30 police officers outside

          5  my front door coming with a tremendous amount of

          6  documents issuing our closing.

          7                 Since opening on December 11th, 2003,

          8  we have gone to extraordinary lengths to keep our

          9  establishment free of illegal activity including

         10  calling in Manhattan South Narcotics.  So we called

         11  in Manhattan South Narcotics ourselves to ask them

         12  to help us when we felt there was a presence of drug

         13  dealers in our establishment.  We have spent a good

         14  amount of money training our security staff to

         15  identify illegal activity and we have turned over

         16  many suspects to the New York Police Department

         17  resulting in over 30 arrests which we initiated.

         18                 This book, the second book I have

         19  brought today is full of incident reports where we

         20  find someone in possession of illegal or controlled

         21  substances and or marijuana which the New York City

         22  Police Department felt was too little to make an

         23  arrest, but we did confiscate the illegal narcotics,

         24  destroyed them, photocopied the person's id, filled

         25  out an incident report and banned them from our
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          2  nightclub.

          3                 We are also very vigilant on underage

          4  drinking and we have been using id scanners since we

          5  opened.  We did not wait to be nuisance abated to

          6  put in id scanners.  This is something we've done

          7  since we opened.  And as the book I showed earlier,

          8  in two to three months we've collected over 100 id's

          9  that were false and well over 100 id's that were

         10  valid but being presented by the wrong person.

         11  Those id's were copied and then returned to their

         12  rightful owner.

         13                 Despite all of this, we are being

         14  asked to maintain a 100 percent perfect environment,

         15  a standard the New York Police Department itself

         16  cannot maintain at a high security facility at

         17  Rikers Island.

         18                 The way I see it, a hammer is a tool

         19  designed to strike a nail and when it is used in

         20  this fashion, it is very effective.  A hammer can

         21  also be used to strike another individual and when

         22  used in this manner, it can cause great harm.  The

         23  Nuisance Abatement Law was designed to shut down

         24  businesses proven to meet the definition of a

         25  nuisance and when used in this fashion, it is a very
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          2  effective tool.  The Nuisance Abatement Law can also

          3  be used to shut down businesses not proven to meet

          4  the definition of a nuisance and when used in this

          5  fashion, it can cause great harm to that business.

          6                 As a result of the nuisance abatement

          7  we agreed to a stipulation of settlement.  There are

          8  over 20 provisions of the stipulation of settlement

          9  we already comply with from id scanners to searching

         10  patrons to working, functioning video cameras.  The

         11  only thing that really occurred was a $25,000 dollar

         12  fine and an agreement to have an monitoring service

         13  for one year at a cost of $125,000 dollars.

         14                 No one really understands the

         15  problems that occur in our facilities better than

         16  we.  We are always willing to work with the New York

         17  City Police Department to correct these and fix all

         18  problems, but as other people have mentioned today,

         19  those efforts at communication go shunned.  I feel

         20  it is akin to having this amendment put on to this

         21  law without this hearing.  Thank you.

         22                 MR. SERES: I'll be very, very brief

         23  and I wanted to thank everybody again for having us

         24  here because I really think that communication is

         25  going to be the best way we can past all of this and
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          2  move forward and bring New York City nightlife back

          3  to what it should be and what it was known

          4  throughout the world.

          5                 Before we got shut down which was the

          6  first week after New Year's, everything for the most

          7  part within our stipulation including a monitor  --

          8  We had hired a representative from FIA three months

          9  prior to us being shut down acting more as a

         10  consultant when we had a problem with our security

         11  company.  We wanted to change security companies and

         12  we wanted to actually take a good step forward at

         13  least in good faith.  So we brought FIA in to help

         14  us figure out which security company, that's

         15  licensed and bonded et cetera, that's out there

         16  would be best suited for our establishment.  So

         17  within the stipulation, not only were we already

         18  having the monitor, but we were already scanning

         19  id's.  I mean all the things that were in our

         20  stipulation as well, we had in effect so other than

         21  closing us down and lost revenues and loss of wages

         22  for all of our employees and everything else, you

         23  look at the Nuisance Abatement Act and it's just

         24  like Robert said, it becomes more punitive than

         25  anything else.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I don't have

          3  that much more time because there is one more person

          4  to testify and, again, we have to be out of the

          5  room, but, again, let me play the part of the Police

          6  Department.  What are the allegations or why are you

          7  being shut down?  And are you contending that

          8  someone got in with an id that went through your

          9  scanner or these are not possible to stop or that

         10  you are doing everything you can to stop them or

         11  that perhaps the remedy is too much for the problem?

         12                 MR. SERES: All of the above.  It's

         13  all of the above. The comment that was just made

         14  here that we can't be held to a standard higher than

         15  society can be held to or higher than the Police can

         16  be held to in their own maximum security prisons

         17  where there are still drugs present.  I think that's

         18  the best analogy.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'd just like to

         20  know what were the allegations that shut both those

         21  clubs down?  Are we saying that they were faulty or

         22  what's the argument?

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: The allegations were

         24  that  --  in this situation, in the Sol situation,

         25  in addition to the outrageous ones which I said
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          2  before that on two or three incidents an undercover

          3  police officer unbeknownst to us was able to

          4  purchase a misdemeanor amount of marijuana from

          5  another patron, no allegation that we were involved

          6  or that an employee was involved.  There were

          7  similar situations in Cro- Bar.  What we're saying

          8  is that in a large club, where there's thousands of

          9  people in dark corners, if you, the Police

         10  Department, feel that we don't have a sufficient

         11  number of security, then talk to us about that, if

         12  you feel our cameras aren't working, talk to us

         13  about that, but if we are doing everything that you

         14  want us to, if we meet best practices standards, we

         15  can't be 100 percent effective anymore than they can

         16  be 100 percent effective in their own prisons.  Yet

         17  that's the standard that they are holding us to.  So

         18  that's why I wanted to show you the examples at Cro-

         19  Bar.  If it's a place that's doing all this stuff,

         20  that they're proactive, they've reached out to the

         21  police, they have their own monitors, they're

         22  seizing id's, and they are doing all of that yet

         23  they're still being nuisance abated because an

         24  undercover cop bought a joint from somebody else.

         25  Well then we might as well shut down all the dorms
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          2  at NYU and Columbia, all the parks in the City of

          3  New York, all the prisons and everywhere else that

          4  there's drugs located because we need to be held to

          5  a standard of legitimate best efforts, period.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I couldn't agree

          7  more that the sale of marijuana inside your location

          8  is something you have almost no control over and it

          9  would be ridiculous to shut some place down for two

         10  of those, but, again, they said, and I know you were

         11  here, that the reason they target locations isn't by

         12  throwing darts at a board.  It's because of a very

         13  technical process, Comstat, community complaints,

         14  all those situations come before they attempt to

         15  show the damage for whatever reason  --

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: Right, but I thought I

         17  answered that before.  Not that there was criminal

         18  activity necessarily at these places.  I think that

         19  the criminal activity is the ones that they're going

         20  and finding or creating if  --  He said in his

         21  testimony community complaints, 311 calls, the

         22  geographic determinations.  Well yeah, just listen

         23  to those three things, community complaints, about

         24  what?  Are they complaining about drugs going on

         25  inside or are they complaining that it's noisy
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          2  outside? 311 complaints, same thing, public

          3  urination all those things that paid detail would

          4  resolve would resolve.  Yes they're getting those

          5  calls.  Geographic well yeah.  You know on 27th

          6  Street, five years ago, there was nobody there at

          7  night and there was no crime because there was

          8  nobody there.  Now there is a hundred thousand

          9  people there.  Are there Comstat statistics

         10  geographically being affected by the fact that the

         11  City had all these places open?  Of course it is

         12  I'm sure there are cars being broken into.  Our

         13  customers are victims of crimes out on the street so

         14  they are using all that together saying this place

         15  is a pain in the butt because I keep getting 311

         16  calls about it, there are community complaints.

         17  Down the block we are getting criminal activity

         18  across the street from it or down the block from it.

         19    What could we do?  Well let's send them a message.

         20    Let's nuisance abate them.  But what do we have?

         21  We have a bunch of dismissed summonses so let's send

         22  in our undercover unit.  Let's see what we could

         23  find.  Let's see what we could get.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  All

         25  right.  Again, I do need to get moving.  We are in a
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          2  bind here at the Council because we wanted to give

          3  the police the tools they need to close the bad

          4  places down, but we can't control how they use those

          5  tools.  We can give them the hammer, but we can't

          6  control how they use the hammer. All we can promise

          7  you is that we will continue to do oversight and

          8  that we will continue to do everything we can to

          9  increase the communication.  I know in my district

         10  many times I've sat down with club owners and the

         11  Police Department together in one room because they

         12  had a problem arranging that on their own, and I'm

         13  sure that the Speaker would do the same for you.

         14  We'd like to have that done without you having to

         15  call your elected official and we're working with

         16  the Administration on that and they seem amenable.

         17  Apparently, there is still a lot of problems.

         18  Hopefully, it's better than it was.

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is better than it

         20  was.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good.  Good and

         22  we're going to continue to work towards that.

         23  Again, we are in a bind.  We're going to pass a

         24  version of these laws.  They may be amended, they

         25  may not, but we want to give them the tools they
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          2  need to work on the places that truly deserve to be

          3  shut down and not effect places like, again I'm not

          4  going to vouch for every place out there, I just

          5  happen to know, because my mom gives Dave Rabin

          6  glowing recommendations about his club, so I happen

          7  to know that you sound like you try to do everything

          8  that you can to cooperate with the police and I know

          9  I've worked with David to that.

         10                 Our door is always open, as Rob knows

         11  very well, perhaps too open.  I may have to shut it

         12  sometimes, but anything we can do and we'll have  --

         13    Yes, Rob.

         14                 MR. BOOKMAN: We think that  --  well

         15  we don't want you to take the hammer away, to

         16  continue with that analogy.  We do think that there

         17  are practical amendments to the Nuisance Abatement

         18  Law that you can pass which would make it safety

         19  hammer.  We would be happy to go over those ideas

         20  with you, both for this section and the pre-

         21  existing sections of the Nuisance Abatement Law.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Obviously, we're

         23  going to take a look at that.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Great.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you all
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          2  for coming down and for getting up early today, and

          3  let me go to the last person to testify here who is

          4  Tony Herbert of the Brooklyn Sugar Event Space. Mr.

          5  Herbert, thank you for waiting.  I look forward to

          6  your testimony.

          7                 MR. HERBERT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8    Actually, I'll be very brief.  I think the

          9  Nightlife Association kind of spoke directly to what

         10  a lot of the issues are.  What I ask the Committee

         11  to do is to take into consideration that these are

         12  small business owners and these businesses do bring

         13  a lot of advantages to a lot of industries that are

         14  related to the nightlife industry, as you may call

         15  it, the taxi and limousine, the bodegas, the

         16  restaurants, and the like.  So I ask, again, that

         17  you do definitely take into consideration a lot of

         18  oversight with reference to what Mr. Bookman had

         19  outlined earlier with regards to this Intro.

         20                 Intro 515 definitely needs some

         21  revision and some amendment to it so that it meets

         22  the standards of putting these club owners that are

         23  doing the business fairly and appropriately in the

         24  best position possible and not be held accountable

         25  to those that are out there doing the negative
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          2  things that will cause those problems.  I actually,

          3  on behalf of the consulting team over at Brooklyn

          4  Sugar in Williamsburg, ask that you, again, take

          5  into consideration Intro 515 and do the due

          6  diligence necessary to make sure that keep under

          7  consideration that these are small business owners.

          8  The only people that are really going to be effected

          9  here are the individuals that work for these clubs

         10  and the restaurants, the bartenders, the waitresses

         11  and these individuals are using these jobs for the

         12  purpose of supplementing the incomes that they don't

         13  have quite frankly.

         14                 So, again, I ask you favorably to

         15  take into consideration that information in

         16  deliberation with regards to the Intro and be more

         17  cognoscente that there are smaller people who could

         18  be hurt by this.

         19                 That's basically the nuts and bolts

         20  of what we're saying, but also to keep in mind 311

         21  calls could also be false calls for community people

         22  who just don't want the venues there and that does

         23  create somewhat of a scenario for the Police

         24  Department to come in.  I hold the Commissioner to a

         25  high esteem.  I work very closely with Commissioner
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          2  Kelly and Chief Esposito, but at the same time,

          3  there are small business owners that are suffering

          4  from the few when there are the many that are trying

          5  to do the right thing. So I thank you for that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I thank you Mr.

          7  Herbert. Before I let you go let me just welcome

          8  here today the 8th grade class from Beth Jacob.  The

          9  teachers are Ms. Fullman and Ms. Zemba. Clap for

         10  yourselves, sure because not many people get the

         11  opportunity to come down here and see democracy in

         12  action.  What's happening here today  --  Just,

         13  sure, stand up.  Why not?  You've got to listen to

         14  the Sergeant- at- Arms.  It's one of the things we

         15  learned.

         16                 This is the home of democracy and the

         17  greatest City in the world.  This is the legislature

         18  and this is an oversight hearing.  This is the

         19  Public Safety Committee.  We heard from the Police

         20  Department earlier.  These are people who aren't all

         21  that enthused, or happy about what the Police

         22  Department is doing regarding enforcing laws against

         23  bars and things like that which I know none of you

         24  go to, except my mom of course, but that's a whole

         25  other story.  So we ask the questions here and they
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          2  give us the answers and the hearing is just about

          3  over.  But I would also like to give a special

          4  welcome to little Rachel who happens to be the

          5  daughter of our favorite Council Member Simcha

          6  Felder.  Rachel, just let me say if you need any

          7  help, you can come to us.  If he get out of line,

          8  let us know.  I'm kidding.  As you know, Council

          9  Member Felder  --  I'm half kidding, Rachel.  If you

         10  really need any help, come to us.  Your dad is one

         11  of the shining lights down here.  He is a huge help

         12  to me when it comes to keeping this City safe and

         13  especially our children in our schools.  He is my

         14  right hand down here.  He's a huge help and I know

         15  he's a good friend of the other side of the Hall,

         16  the Administration, so he get a lot of things done.

         17  I am proud to be his friend and proud that he's here

         18  today and very happy that he was able to get you

         19  guys to come down here because there aren't that

         20  many classes that get to come down here.  So thank

         21  you for coming down.  Thank you.  Do you want to say

         22  something?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         24  No.  Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And for the very
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          2  first time, Simcha Felder does not want to say

          3  anything.

          4                 But, again, we are done Mr. Herbert

          5  and thank you for coming down today and waiting

          6  until the end and to  --  just a citizen coming down

          7  here to complain, or not actually complain, but to

          8  help us improve what we are attempting to do here

          9  and that's to toughen up some laws.  This hearing is

         10  now adjourned and thank you all for coming down.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 12:32 p.m.)
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